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VISION 

To become a world class, socially responsible, green mining 

Company maximizing value of all stakeholders.  

MISION 

 To ensure sustainable growth of the Company by 

having synergy with all stake holders and 

maximization of returns, while following best practices 

of corporate governance and promoting ecological 

balance and mineral conservation. 

 

 To ensure high level of customer satisfaction. 

 

 To achieve international standards of productivity by 

scientific mining & adequate thrust on R & D, power 

consumption, environmental standards, preservation of 

flora & fauna, water resources. 

 

 To share developmental benefits with people living in 

& around mines, while improving the welfare of 

employees. 

 

 To expand the mining activities in other minerals like 

Coal, Chromites and other rare minerals in & outside 

the country by acquiring new mines. 
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CIN: L51430OR1918GOI034390 

REGISTERED OFFICE: C/O “SAIL OFFICE, GROUND FLOOR, 271, BIDYUT MARG, UNIT 
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Tel: 0674-2391595, Fax: 0674-2391495 
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NOTICE OF 104TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 104th Annual General Meeting of The Orissa Minerals Development 

Company Limited will be held on Thursday, 29th September, 2022 at 10.00 Hrs through Video 

Conferencing(“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business : 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:    

1. To consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2022, together with the Report of the Board of Directors, Auditors and Comments of the 

Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) thereon. 

2.  To authorize Board of Directors of the Company to fix the Remuneration of the Statutory Auditors 

of the Company appointed by Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) for the financial 

year 2022-23, in terms of provisions of Section 139(5) read with Section 142 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the 

following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution. 

“RESOLVED THAT 

The Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to decide and fix the 

Remuneration of such amount plus Out of pocket expenses to Statutory Auditors of the Company 

for the financial year 2022-23 who were appointed by the C&AG in terms of provisions of Section 

139(5) read with Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013.” 
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SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. Appointment of Shri Atul Bhatt, (DIN-07639362) as Non-Executive Chairman of the Company and 

in this regard to consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT  

“Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, 161 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder Shri Atul Bhatt (DIN-07639362), Non-Executive 

Chairman who was appointed as additional director of the company w.e.f. 13.09.2021 and who holds 

office as such up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as Non-

Executive Chairman of the Company.” 

 

4. Appointment of Smt Sarasu T.N. (DIN-09593230) as Independent Director of the Company and in 

this regard to consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, 161 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder Smt Sarasu T.N. (DIN-09593230), Independent 

Director who was appointed as additional director of the company w.e.f. 01.11.2021 and who holds 

office as such up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as 

Independent director of the Company.” 

 

5. Appointment of Shri Shidharth Shambhu (DIN- 01646617) as Independent Director of the Company 

and in this regard to consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT  

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, 161 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder Shri Shidharth Shambhu (DIN-               ), 

Independent Director who was appointed as additional director of the company w.e.f. 01.11.2021 and 

who holds office as such up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed 

as Independent director of the Company.” 
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5. Appointment of Shri M. Saravanan  as Independent Director of the Company and in this regard to 

consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, 161 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder Shri M. Saravanan, Independent Director who was 

appointed as additional director of the company w.e.f. 01.11.2021 and who holds office as such up to 

the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as Independent director of the 

Company.” 

 

By Order of the Board 

For The Orissa Minerals Development Company Ltd  

 Sd/- 

CFO 

Place: Bhubaneswar  

Date: 06.09.2022    
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

Special Item: 

Item No: 3 

Shri Atul Bhatt (DIN : 07639362), Chairman cum Managing Director of RINL and Non-Executive 

Chairman who was appointed as an additional Director of the Company w.e.f 13.09.2021 upon receipt 

of nomination from RINL by way of circular resolution dated 18.09.2021 and which was approved and 

taken note by Board of OMDC in its 67th Meeting held on 12/11/2021. 

 

Shri Atul Bhatt, Non-Executive Chairman of OMDC who was appointed as an additional director of the 

company w.e.f. 13.09.2021 and who holds office as such up to the date of ensuing Annual General 

Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as director of the Company.  Shri Atul Bhatt is not disqualified 

from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Your Directors recommend his appointment in the interest of the Company.   

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) or the relatives of Directors or KMPs, except 

Shri Atul Bhatt are in any way, concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the said resolution. 

Item No: 4 

Ministry of Steel vide its Order No. 1/10/2015-BLA (Vol-V) (pt.) dated 01st November, 2021, 

appointed Smt Sarasu T.N. (DIN-09593230) as Non-Official Independent Director on the Board of 

OMDC for a period of three years from the date of notification of his appointment, or until orders 

whichever is earlier.  

 

Smt Sarasu T.N, Non-Official Independent Director of OMDC who was appointed as an additional 

director of the company w.e.f. 01.11.2021 and who holds office as such up to the date of ensuing 

Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as director of the Company.  Smt Sarasu T.N is 

not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 
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Your Directors recommend his appointment in the interest of the Company.   

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) or the relatives of Directors or KMPs, except 

Smt Sarasu T.N are in any way, concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the said resolution. 

Item No: 5 

Ministry of Steel vide its Order No. 1/10/2015-BLA (Vol-V) (pt.) dated 01st November, 2021, 

appointed Shri Shidharth Shambhu (DIN- 01646617) as Non-Official Independent Director on the 

Board of OMDC for a period of three years from the date of notification of his appointment, or until 

orders whichever is earlier.  

 

Shri Shidharth Shambhu, Non-Official Independent Director of OMDC who was appointed as an 

additional director of the company w.e.f. 01.11.2021 and who holds office as such up to the date of 

ensuing Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as director of the Company. Shri 

Shidharth Shambhu is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Your Directors recommend his appointment in the interest of the Company.   

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) or the relatives of Directors or KMPs, except 

Shri Shidharth Shambhu are in any way, concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the said 

resolution. 

Item No: 6 

Ministry of Steel vide its Order No. 1/10/2015-BLA (Vol-V) (pt.) dated 01st November, 2021, 

appointed Shri M. Saravanan as Non-Official Independent Director on the Board of OMDC for a period 

of three years from the date of notification of his appointment, or until orders whichever is earlier.  

 

Shri M. Saravanan, Non-Official Independent Director of OMDC who was appointed as an additional 

director of the company w.e.f. 01.11.2021 and who holds office as such up to the date of ensuing 

Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as director of the Company. Shri M. Saravanan is 

not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 
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Your Directors recommend his appointment in the interest of the Company.   

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) or the relatives of Directors or KMPs, except 

Shri M. Saravanan are in any way, concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the said 

resolution. 

By order of the Board 

For The Orissa Minerals Development Company Ltd  

 

Sd/- 

CFO 

 

Place: Bhubaneshwar 

Date: 06.09.2022 
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NOTES: 

1) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members 

and Share Transfer Books for the equity shares of the Company will remain closed Friday, 23rd  

September, 2022 to Thursday, 29th  September, 2022 (both days exclusive) 

2) The Board did not recommend dividend for the financial year 2021-22, due to losses incurred 

by the company during the financial year. 

3) Pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company is required to transfer 

unpaid dividends remaining unclaimed and unpaid for the period of 7 years from the due 

date(s) to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) set up by the Central 

Government. Shareholders are requested to note that no claims shall lie against the said Fund or 

the Company in respect of any amounts which were unclaimed and unpaid for a period of 

seven years from the dates that they first became due for payment and no payment shall be 

made in respect of any such claims. 

Unclaimed final dividend for the year 2013-14 is due for transfer to Investors’ Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF) established by Government of India on or after 31.10.2021. All 

shareholders, whose dividend is unpaid, are requested to lodge their claim with M/s. CB 

Management Services (P) Limited, the Registrar & Transfer Agent of the Company by 

submitting an application on or before 31.10.2021. Kindly note that no claims will lie against 

the Company or the IEPF once the dividend amount is deposited in IEPF. 

4) Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules 

made there under, Companies can serve Annual Reports and other communications through 

electronic mode to those Members who have registered their email address either with the 

Company or with the Depository Participant(s). Members who have not yet registered their 

email address can now register the same either with the Company or with the Depository 

Participant(s). Members of the Company who have registered their email address are also 

entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon request. 

5) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding 

shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository 

Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in 

physical form can submit their PAN to the Company / CB Management Services (P) Limited. 

6) Members desirous of making a nomination in respect of their shareholding in physical form, as 

permitted under Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, are requested to submit the prescribed 

form SH-13 and SH-14, accordingly to the Share Department of the Company or to the office 

of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s C B Management Services (P) Limited.   

7) Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint 

holding in the same order of names are requested to send the share certificates to CB 

Management Services (P) Limited for consolidation into a single folio. 

8) Cut-off date for e-voting has been fixed on 22nd September, 2022. 
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9) The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained under 

Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the members at the 

AGM. 

10) Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform CB Management Services (P) Limited  

immediately of: 

 

(a) Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement. 

 

(b) Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account 

type, account number and address of the bank with pin code number, if not furnished 

earlier. 

11) To receive all communication promptly, please update your address registered with the 

Company or Depository Participant, as may be applicable.  

 

12) VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS 

1. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be 

followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 

dated April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 

20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 , Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and  Circular No. 

02/2022 dated May 05, 2022 all other relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical 

attendance of the Members to the EGM/AGM venue is not required and general meeting be 

held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members 

can attend and participate in the ensuing EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM. 

 

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for 

this EGM/AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised 

representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast 

their votes through e-voting. 

 

3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in 

the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 

available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large 

Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional 

Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors 

etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first come first 

served basis. 

 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted 

for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 
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SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the 

Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 

05, 2020  and May 05, 2022 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its 

Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the 

Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 

for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting 

votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the 

EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

 

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 

2020, the Notice calling the EGM/AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 

www.birdgroup.co.in. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 

Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 

www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the EGM/AGM Notice is also 

available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

7. EGM/AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 and 

MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 May 05, 2020, 

MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021 and MCA Circular No. 2/2022 dated May 05, 

2022. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING 

GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:- 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on Monday, 26th September, 2022 at 10.00 AM and ends on 

28th September, 2022 at 5.00 PM. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for 

voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial 

Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 22nd September, 2022, may cast their vote 

electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-

up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 22nd September, 2022. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 

their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
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advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-

Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat 

mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of 

NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page 

click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 

which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt 

you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 

services under Value added services. Click on “Access to 
e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to 

see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to 

e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 

during the meeting. 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 

register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 

“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 

home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the 

icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. 

You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit 

demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 

and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 

successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click 

on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL 

and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

  

 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile 

App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code 
mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can 

login through their user id and password. Option will be 

made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 

authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest 

are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 

www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also 

able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links 

of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL 

to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 

register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistra

tion 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a 

link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 

authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile 

& Email as recorded in the demat Account. After 

successful authentication, user will be provided links for 

the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in 

progress. 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Individual 

Shareholders (holding 

securities in demat 

mode) login through 

their depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 

account through your Depository Participant registered with 

NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be 

able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be 

redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 

will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting 

& voting during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 

issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 

990  and  1800 22 44 30 

 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 

23058738 or 022-23058542-43 

 

 

 

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding 

securities in physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP 

and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to 

NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can 

proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 

and Client ID is 12****** then your 

user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 

Number registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** 

and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 

101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given 

below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 
 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 

retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and 
the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 

company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your 
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 

Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf 

file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for 

NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 

number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  
(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below 

in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not 

registered.  
 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 

demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send 

a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio 

number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 

votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 
 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 
on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 

are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need 

to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 

of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

 

 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 

attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, 

to the Scrutinizer (M/s. MR & Associates)  by e-mail to goenkamohan@gmail.com, 

omdc.sec.dept@gmail.com, info@birdgroup.co.in with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their 

Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board 

Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires 

shares of the Company and becomes member of the Company after  the notice is send through 

e-mail and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 22nd September, 2022, may obtain the 

login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA. However, 

if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your existing 

user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your 

password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 

30 . In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares 

of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and 

holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 22nd September, 2022 may follow steps mentioned in 

the Notice of the AGM under  Step 1 :“Access to NSDL e-Voting system”(Above). 

3. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 

care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon 

five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to 

go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

4. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 

www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a 

request to  Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager at evoting@nsdl.co.in  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:goenkamohan@gmail.com
mailto:omdc.sec.dept@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 

procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 

out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of 

PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 

omdc.sec.dept@gmail.com, info@birdgroup.co.in 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 

16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 

PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 

Aadhar Card) to (omdc.sec.dept@gmail.com, info@birdgroup.co.in). If you are an Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method 

explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring 

user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 

account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM 

ARE AS UNDER:- 

 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 

above for remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM 

facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 

EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. 

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility 

for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-

voting. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH 

VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through 

the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for 

Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM 

link” placed under “Join Meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on 

mailto:omdc.sec.dept@gmail.com
mailto:omdc.sec.dept@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 

Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the 

members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID 

and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned 

in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

  

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 

any disturbance during the meeting. 

 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 

respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 

mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may 

register themselves as a speaker may send their request mentioning their name, demat account 

number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (omdc.sec.dept@gmail.com, 

info@birdgroup.co.in) latest by 5.00 PM (IST) on Tuesday, 27th  day of September, 2022 

 

6. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 

advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number 

at (omdc.sec.dept@gmail.com, info@birdgroup.co.in) latest by 5.00 PM (IST) on Tuesday, 27th   

day of September, 2022. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 
 

7. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 

their views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

8. When a pre-registered speaker is invited to speak at the meeting but he / she does not respond, 

the next speaker will be invited to speak. Accordingly, all speakers are requested to get 

connected to a device with a video/ camera along with good internet speed. 
 

9. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as 

appropriate, for smooth conduct of the AGM. 
 

10. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, 

Senior Manager, NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call  1800 1020 990 / 1800 22 44 30. 

 

By order of the Board 

                                                                            For The Orissa Minerals Development Company Ltd 

Sd/- 

 

Place: Bhubaneswar CFO 

Date: 06.09.2022 

mailto:omdc.sec.dept@gmail.com
mailto:omdc.sec.dept@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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REQUEST TO MEMBERS 

Members desirous of getting Information/Clarification on the Accounts and Operations of the Company 

or intending to raise any query are requested to forward the same at least 7 days in advance of the 

meeting to the Company Secretary at the office address so as the same may be attended appropriately. 

KIND ATTENTION OF SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM 

The Shares held by you in physical form can be easily dematerialized i.e. converted into electronic 

form. The various benefits derived out of dematerialization of shares are: 

1. Immediate transfer of securities. 

2. No stamp duty on transfer of securities. 

3. Elimination of risk associated with physical certificates such as bad delivery, fake securities etc. 

4. Reduction in paperwork involved in transfer of securities. 

5. Reduction in transaction cost. 

6. Nomination facility. 

7. Changes in address recorded with DP get registered electronically with all Companies in which 

investor holds securities in demat form, eliminating the need to correspond with each of them 

separately. 

8. Transmission of securities is done by DP eliminating correspondence with Companies. 

9. Convenient method of consolidation of folios/accounts. 

10. Automatic credit into demat account of shares arising out of split/ consolidation / merger. 

You are therefore, requested to: 

a) Approach any Depository Participant (DP) of your choice for opening a Demat Account. 

b) Fill in a Demat Request Form (DRF) and handover the relative physical share certificate(s) 

to your DP for Dematerialization of your shares. 

          Shares will get converted into electronic form and automatically credited to your Demat      

Account. 
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Important communication to members 

 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green initiative in the Corporate Governance” by 

allowing paperless compliances by the Companies and has issued a Circular stating that service of 

notice/ documents including annual report can be sent by e-mail to its members. We request you to 

join us in this noble initiative and look forward to your consent to receive the annual report in 

electronic form. To support this green initiative of the Government in full measure and in compliance 

of Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, members who have not registered their 

e-mail addresses, so far, are requested to register their e-mail addresses, in respect of electronic 

holdings with the Depository through their concerned Depository Participant. Members who hold 

shares in physical form are requested to register the same with OMDC Limited or our Registrar and 

Transfer Agent, M/S C B Management Services (P) Ltd , P-22, Bondel Road, Kolkata – 700 019 to 

enable the Company to send the Annual Reports through e-mail instead of physical form. 
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INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SEBI(LODR) IN CONNECTION WITH THE DIRECTORS 

SEEKING APPOINTMENT AT THE 104TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING. 

Name of the Director Atul Bhatt, 

Non-Executive Chairman 

DIN 07639362 

Date of Birth & Age 06/11/1964 & 57 

Date of Appointment 13.09.2021 

Qualifications Bachelor Degree in Chemical Engineering from IIT, Delhi 

PGDM from IIM, Calcutta 

Expertise in specific 

functional Area 

1.Shri Atul Bhatt, CMD, RINL was CMD of MECON Limited 

from Oct’ 2016 to Sept’ 2021 and successfully spearheaded the 
transformation of MECON from a Sector-specific loss making 

Consultancy/ Organization to a Multi-Sectoral, Technologically 

driven, Commercially-viable Business Enterprise.. 

2.Prior to joining MECON he was the Executive Director (Business 

Development and Corporate Planning) in NMDC and was 

instrumental in the formulation of Strategic Management Plan 

2025 for the Company. 

3.Shri Atul Bhatt has served in Arcelor Mittal as General Manager 

(Mergers & Acquisition) based in London, UK and also as 

Country Manager (Iran) based in Tehran, Iran.  

4.Shri Bhatt also worked in Tata Steel for a number of years, where 

he started his career as a Graduate Trainee in 1986. 

Directorship held in other 

Companies 

1.Rashtriya Ispat Nigam Limited 

2.The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited 

3.Eastern Investments Limited 

   4.International Coal Ventures Limited 

Relationship with other 

Directors, Manager and 

other Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company 

NA 

Membership/ Chairmanship 

of Committees in BSLC 

NIL 

Membership/  Chairmanship 

of Committees of other 

Public Ltd Companies(other 

than BSLC) 

NIL 

No. of Shares held in BSLC NIL 
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Name Shidharth Shambhu 

Independent Director 

DIN 061646617 

Date of Birth & Age 15/12/1979 & 43 

Date of Appointment 03/11/2021 

Qualifications M.Com, LLB 

Expertise in specific functional Area Legal Consultancy 

Directorship held in other Companies NIL 

Relationship with other Directors, Manager 

and other Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company 

NA 

Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees 

in OMDC 

Membership in Audit Committee, Corporate 

Social Responsibility committee 

Membership/  Chairmanship of Committees 

of other Public Ltd Companies(other than 

OMDC) 

NIL 

No. of Shares held in OMDC NIL 

 

 

 

 

Name Sarasu T.N 

Independent Director 

DIN 09593230 

Date of Birth & Age 16/08/1959 & 63 

Date of Appointment 01/11/2021  

Qualifications BSc, MSc, PHD 

Expertise in specific functional Area Teaching, Research and Administration 

Directorship held in other Companies NIL 

Relationship with other Directors, Manager 

and other Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company 

NA 

Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees 

in OMDC 

Membership in Audit Committee, 

Nomination Remuneration committee 

Membership/  Chairmanship of Committees 

of other Public Ltd Companies(other than 

OMDC) 

NIL 

No. of Shares held in OMDC NIL 
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Name M. Saravanan 

Independent Director 

DIN - 

Date of Birth & Age 30/05/1980 & 42 

Date of Appointment 01/11/2021 

Qualifications BA, LLB 

Expertise in specific functional Area Advocate 

Directorship held in other Companies NIL 

Relationship with other Directors, Manager 

and other Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company 

NA 

Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees 

in OMDC 

Membership in Audit Committee, 

Stakeholder Relationship committee 

Membership/  Chairmanship of Committees 

of other Public Ltd Companies(other than 

OMDC) 

NIL 

No. of Shares held in OMDC NIL 

 

Note: 1) Details in the above table are as on notice date. 2) Membership/Chairmanship of Audit 

Committee and Stakeholders/Investors Relationship Committee of Public Limited Companies. 
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Chairman’s Speech at the 104th Annual General Meeting on 29th September, 2022 

 

Good Morning! 

Ladies& Gentlemen   

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, it is a great honour and privilege for me to 

extend a very warm welcome to all of you at the 104thAnnual General Meeting of Your Company. 

The Directors’ Report and the Audited Statement of the Accounts for the year FY 2021-22 and the 

Notice to the Shareholders have already been circulated and with your permission, I take them as 

read. 

 

1)  Performance of  Your Company: 

 

I am pleased to inform you that the Company has achieved some progress towards resumption of 

mining operations.   

 

In case of Bagiaburu Mines, the Company has received Extension of Mining Lease from 10/10/2021 

to 10/10/2041 and Stage-II Forest Clearance.  For Environment Clearance, Public Hearing has been 

completed and the necessary documents have been submitted to MoEF for the purpose of 

Environment Clearance.  Mining Contractor is already in place.  

 

In case of Belkundi Mines, the Mining Lease is valid up to 15/05/2026 and our proposal for Extension 

of Forest Clearance Co-terminus with the Mining Lease is under consideration of MoEF.  For 

Environment Clearance, we are pursuing for PubIic Hearing.  In the meantime, we are processing a 

tender for appointment of Mine Development cum Operator.   

 

In case of Bhadrasahi mines, the Mining Lease is valid up to 30.09.2030 and we are pursuing for Co-

terminus Extension of Forest Clearance and Public Hearing for Environment Clearance. 

 

As you aware, the Company had obtained permission for sale of un-disposed stocks of Bhadrasahi 

Mines.  Based on this, the Company realised an Operational Income of Rs.82.68 Cr during the year.  

However, the Company incurred a loss of Rs.14.49 Cr mainly due to reduction in Interest Income and 

amortisation of Rs.12.95 Cr expenses incurred on Mining Lease renewal for Bagiaburu mines           

(Rs 10.78 Crs towards stamp duty and registration) and NPV payment for Bhadrasahi mines ( Rs 3.65 
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Crs ). 

The Company has obtained permission from the Hon’ble Supreme Court for sale of un-disposed 

stock in case of the other 2 mines and the Company is in the process of obtaining other necessary 

clearances for commencement of sales.    

 

2) Looking Ahead 

The company is committed for renewal of mining operations and also geared up to move forward 

towards growth and better future by resolving the pending issues and effectively defending against 

the litigations. 

 

3) Dividend for the year FY 2021-22 

In view of the accumulated losses incurred by the Company during financial Year 2021-22, your 

Company have not proposed any dividend.  

 

4) Corporate Governance 

OMDC as a responsible Corporate citizen strongly believes in complying with the basic principles of 

Corporate Governance i.e. accountability, transparency, fairness and responsibility. Your company 

being a Central Public Sector Enterprise (CPSE) has been complying in toto with various guidelines 

issued by DPE/DoPT/DOE and various other government organizations. 

 

Your Company has been adhering to the principles of good Corporate Governance so as to ensure 

ethical and efficient conduct of the affairs of the Company.  OMDC aims at not only its own growth 

but also maximization of benefits to the shareholders, employees, customers, government and also 

the general public at large.  For this purpose the company is continuously striving to improve its level 

of overall efficiency through good corporate governance practices in all its operations which are vital 

to achieve its Vision. 

 

5) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) has been an integral part of our business philosophy and your 

Company has been following it much before it became a norm for the corporate sector in India. The 

Company has been allocating CSR budget in line with guidelines circulated by DPE from time to time 

and as per provisions of Companies Act, 2013, amended from time to time. 

Your Company's CSR activities are focused in areas such as Health, Education, Employment 

generation, Empowerment of women and Drinking Water etc. which are enumerated under 

schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013. 
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6) Acknowledgement 

On behalf of your Company’s Board of Directors, I wish to convey my sincere thanks to the valued 

Shareholders for their continuous support and reposing trust on us. This motivates us to excel in all 

our pursuits and constant endeavour to create value for the stakeholders. 

I take this opportunity to thank the Government of India, Ministry of Steel, Ministry of Mines, 

Ministry of Environment and Forest& Climate Change, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, other 

Departments of Government of India, Government of Odisha, and all other Authorities and 

Regulatory bodies for their unstinted support and valuable guidance. 

I thank you all once again and offer my best wishes for a very joyous festive season ahead. 

 

Thank you and Jai Hind. 

 

 

Chairman 

Dated: 06.09.2022 

Place: Visakhapatnam 

 



 

 

 

 

Dear Member, 

 

On behalf of the Board of Director of the Company, I take great pleasure in presenting the 104thAnnual 

Report of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 together with the Audited 

Statements of Accounts, the Auditor' Report and Comments on the Accounts by the Comptroller and 

Auditor General of India. 

 

1. FINANCIALRESULTS 

 

The financial results of M/s. OMDC for the year 2021-22 in comparison with previous financial year 

2020-21 are given in Table-1 below: 

 

TABLE - 1 

PARTICULARS 

 

For the year ended 

31-03-2022 (Rs. in 

Lakhs) 

For the year ended 

31-03-2021 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Income :-   

Revenue from operations  8267.87*   - 

Other Income       679.17 1075.78 

Total Income 8947.04 1075.78 

Total Expenditure 8787.56 6809.11 

Depreciation & Amortisation       1531.36                   211.00 

Net profit before tax  (1357.26) (5241.03) 

Tax Expenses-(a) Current tax - - 

 (b)Deferred tax 92.14 (1275.59) 

Net profit after tax (1449.40) (3,965.44) 

Total Other Comprehensive Income (4.45) 64.28 

Total Comprehensive Income (1453.850 (3901.16) 

Appropriations:-   

General Reserve 32474.35 32474.35 

Payment of  Dividend  NIL NIL 

Dividend Tax Paid NIL NIL 

 *Sale of Undisposed stock from Bhadrasahi Mines 

 

2. REVIEWOFTHE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Though all the mines are non operational, company is able to dispose old mines stock of Bhadrasahi 

Mines after getting order from Supreme Court. The interest income is reduced during the year from the 

previous year due to reduction in fixed deposit. On the other hand, the interest expenses decrease Rs. 

30 Crs due to reduction in short term loan from Rs 310 Cr. to Rs. 271.17 Cr. 

 

Pursuant to the judgement of Honorable Supreme court dated 02.08.2017, Deputy Director Of Mines, 

Odisha has issued different demand notices dated 02.09.2017, 23.10.2017 and 13.12.2017 to OMDC for 

OMDC leases and to BPMEL for BPMEL leases towards compensation. The amount of demand for OMDC 

leases is Rs 702.19 Crs and for BPMEL leases is Rs 861.57 Crs, totaling Rs. 1563.75 Crs towards EC,FC and 

MP&CTO. OMDC has been operating BPMEL leases backed by power of attorney to sign and execute all 

mining leases and other minerals concessions from time to time. OMDC has paid the compensation of 

OMDC leases of Rs. 876.22 Crs towards OMDC leases (Rs. 1479.68 lakhs on 29.12.2017,Rs 13093.47 

lakhs on 16.11.2018,Rs 693.45 lakhs on 30.01.2019,Rs 40000.00 lakhs on 01.03.2019, Rs 100 lakhs on 
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20.09.2019 and Rs 32255.50 lakhs on 03.10.2019)in 2017-18,2018-19 and 2019-20 out of its own fund of 

Rs 5622.10 lakhs and borrowed fund from bank Rs 31000.00 lakhs. OMDC has paid a sum of Rs 2715.14 

lakhs (Rs 2515.14 lakhs on 29.12.2017 and Rs 200 lakhs on 16.11.2018) towards BPMEL leases as 

advance. The remaining amount of compensation including interest upto 31.03.2022 against BPMEL 

lease amounting Rs 1664.24 Crs are shown under contingent liability. 

 

As a result, Profit/ (Loss) before tax stood at Rs. (1357.26) Lakhs as compared to Rs. (5241.03) Lakhs for 

the previous year. Profit/(Loss) after tax was Rs. (1449.40) Lakhs as compared to Rs. (3965.44) Lakhs 

during the previous year. 

 

3. OUTPUT AND DISPATCH 

 

The company achieved significant progress in the attempts towards bringing the mines into operation.  

The company received extension of mining lease period for Bagiaburu, Belkundi and Bhadrasahi mines.  

Further, the clearance of Hon’ble Supreme Court has been received for resumption of mining operations 
in these mines, subject to obtaining all necessary clearances required in accordance with law.  The 

company is in the process of obtaining the clearances. Also OMDC obtained permission from Hon’ble 
Supreme Court of India for Sale of undisposed stock of minerals from Bhadrasahi vide order dated 

11.08.2020 and for  Belkundi & Bagiaburu mines vide order dated 07.04.2022.  

Despatch from Bhadrasahi mines started on 28.06.2021 and 1.23 lakh tonnes of Iron & Manganese Ore 

dispatched during FY22.  

4. DIVIDEND 

 

Based on the financial results of the Company, your Board did not recommend dividend for the year 

2021-22.  

 

5. OTHER INCOME 

 

Company continued its prudent cash planning to focus on judicious management of its funds. As per the 

Government guidelines, the Company deployed the surplus funds in fixed deposits and earned an 

interest income of Rs. 4.17 Crs on fixed deposits during the year which is included under other income of 

the Statement of Profit & Loss Account. 

 

6. NETWORTH 

 

The net worth of the Company as on 31st March, 2022 reduced to Rs. 353.02 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 

1806.87 Lakhs on 31st March, 2021, on account of provisions as above. 

  

7. TRANSFERTO RESERVES 

 

During the year 2021-22, the Company did not transfer any amount to General Reserve out of Profit and 

Loss Account. 

 

8. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

During the year 2021-22, the Company did not transfer any amount to Investors Education and 

protection fund 

 

9. SHARE CAPITAL 

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2022 was Rs. 60 Lakhs divided into 60Lakhs equity 

share of face value of Re1 each. During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with 

differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor sweat equity. As on March 31, 2022, none of the 



Directors of the Company hold shares or convertible instruments of the Company. 

 

10. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OFDIRECTOR 

 

The Board met 7(Seven) times during the year 2021-22 compared to 5 during CPLY. The details of Board 

Meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance Report annexed with this Board Report. The gap 

between any two Board Meetings have not exceeded the prescribed time limit during the year. 

 

11. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 

 

During the financial year 2021-22, Shri M.Saravanan, Shri Shidharth Shambhu and Mrs. T.N Sarasu were 

appointed as Independent director w.e.f 01.11.2021, 03.11.2021 and 01.11.2021 respectively. 

Declaration of independence was obtained at the time of their appointment. 

 

12. AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

The composition and terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been furnished in the Corporate 

Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. There have been no instances where the Board 

has not accepted the recommendations of the Audit Committee. During the year, 5(five) Audit 

Committee Meetings were held and the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report. 

The intervening gap between these Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies 

Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 

13. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

The company had constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee consisting of Non- Executive 

Directors. The composition and terms of reference of the Committee has been furnished in the 

Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

Being a Central Public Sector Enterprise, the appointment, tenure, performance evaluation, 

remuneration, etc., of Director are made/fixed by the Government of India. The remuneration of officer 

is decided as per Government guidelines on Pay Revision and remunerations of other employees of the 

company are decided as per Wage Settlement Agreement entered into with the Employees’ Union. The 

appointments/promotions etc. of the employees are made as per Recruitment and Promotion Policy 

approved by the Board. 

 

14. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 

The composition and terms of reference of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee has been furnished 

in the Corporate Governance Report forming a part of this Annual Report. During the year, no 

Stakeholder Committee Meetings was held and the details of which are given in the Corporate 

Governance Report.  

 

15. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY(CSR) COMMITTEE 

 

The target areas are Water supply, Education, Infrastructure, Health program through conduct of health 

camps for treatment of villagers of peripheral villages, Women empowerment, Vocational training to 

candidates from weaker section of society for ITI training etc. 

Details about the CSR initiatives and policy of the company are made available at the Company's 

website. 

 

 

 



16. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

 

The Company has not given any loan, guarantee or made investment in securities during FY22. 

 

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

The Company has not entered into any materially significant related party transactions that may have 

potential conflict with the interests of the company at large. Nonetheless, transaction with related party 

have been disclosed in Note no 35 of Notes to the Accounts. Hence no disclosure is made in form AOC-2 

as required under Section 134(3) read with rule 8 of the Companies (accounts) Rules, 2014. Company 

has Related Party Transaction Policy and the same is made available at its website.   

 

18. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 

 

Your Company has a system of internal control to ensure that the financial and other records are 

reliable, the assets and properties are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or 

disposition and that transaction are authorized, recorded and reported correctly.  

 

The Internal Control System is supplemented by extensive program of internal audits, review by 

management and documented policies, guidelines and procedures. The internal control is designed to 

ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial statements and other data 

and for maintaining accountability of assets. 

 

All purchases and expenses are guided by formal approval mechanisms. Officials are designated for 

approval upto specified limits to have automatic and efficient cost control process. 

 

Your Company also has an Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews adequacy of internal control 

systems and the Internal Audit Reports and compliance thereof. The Committee reviews the internal 

control system and conduct of internal audits during the year.  

 

19. FUTURE OUTLOOK 

Considering the progress achieved in obtaining the clearances, the mining operations in Bagiaburu mines 

are expected to resume by Nov/Dec’22 and for Belkundi by Mar/Apr’23. 

20. STATUS OF BRAHMANI COAL BLOCK: 

 

Brahmani Coal Block has been surrendered to MoC and same is agreed by MoC vide letter dated 

25.07.2022. 

 

21. FIXED DEPOSITS 

 

Your company has not accepted any fixed deposits and, accordingly no account was outstanding as at 

the Balance Sheet date. 

 

22. STATUS OF THE MINING LEASES: 

A. OMDC Leases 

 Mining Lease: Orders for extension of validity of lease period have been received from 

Govt. of Odisha for Belkundi mining lease up to 15.08.2026, for Bagiaburu mining lease 

upto 10.10.2041 and  for Bhadrasahi mining lease upto 30.09.2030. 

 Mining Plan: Approval of Mining Plan (MP) has been obtained for Bagiaburu mines up to 

31.03.2026 and for Bhadrasahi mines up to 31.03.2025.  The Mining Plan for Belkundi 

mines is valid up to 31.03.2026. 



 Environment Clearance: Terms of Reference (TOR) has been received for Bagiaburu, 

Belkundi and Bhadrasahi mines.  

 Public Hearing (PH) for Bagiaburu mines has been conducted successfully on 21.07.2022 

and minutes of PH issued on 12.08.2022. Presentation for obtaining EC has been made 

before Expert Appraisal Committee on 05.09.2022. 

 Forest Clearance: Stage-II Forest Clearance of Bagiaburu mines has been issued by 

MoEF&CC, integrated Regional office, Bhubaneswar   on 17.09.2021 for total forest area of 

21.52 hects. The Forest Clearance co-terminus extension of Belkundi Iron & Mn Ore Mines 

has been placed before FAC on 01.08.2022. Forest Advisory Committee (FAC) 

recommended for Forest Clearance co-terminus. Co-terminus Forest Clearance of 

Bhadrasahi Iron & Mn Ore Mines is under process. 

 

B. BPMEL Leases 

All the three BPMEL mining leases are non operational due to legal cases at High Court-

Cuttack, High Court-Kolkata, DRT & DRAT, Kolkata which are sub-judice. 

 

23. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY & TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION 

 

1. The Company has taken initiative to publish all tenders/ Expression of Interest (EOI) in Companies 

Corporate Website as well as Central Public Procurement Portal (CPP Portal) and started 

procurement through Government-e-Market place (GeM) portal. 

2. Procedure for Sale of Iron Ore and Manganese Ore is designed through e-auction mode. 

3. Central Data Repository System ( CDRS) has been developed and implemented for digitization of 

records. 

4. E-Office software is being implemented as a file tracking system in OMDC HO and OMDC Mines. 

5. Maintenance of leave records and processing of salaries is being done through customized payroll 

system. 

6. Tally based Accounting Package is being used to pay vendor bill and different employee 

entitlements through RTGS and e-payment mode. 

 

24. SAFETY MEASURES 

 

Safety measures according to the provisions of the Mines Act, 1952 and relevant Rules, Regulations and 

also the guidelines, notified by the Director General of Mines Safety (DGMS), Govt. of India time to time 

towards safety of employees engaged in mining and allied activities are followed at mines. Safe code of 

practices is also implemented at Workshop, plants etc during the operation and maintenance schedule.  

Annual Mines safety week are celebrated every year under the guidance of Director of Mines Safety, 

Chaibasa Region. During this celebration, competitions are organized amongst workers on different 

safety aspects and safety performances. Safe practices pertaining to different activities in mining 

operations are displayed through participation of workers in safety exhibitions. Necessary safety 

devices, tools and implements are provided to the concerned employees as per the statute. Innovative 

safety practices are also adopted by visiting neighbouring mines. Basic and refresher training is imparted 

to the workers in the Vocational Training Centre on respective field of work and operational activities 

associated with  mines and plants. Disaster management plan has been put in place by the company. 

25. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005 

 

Your Company is proactively complying with the provisions of the Right to Information Act, 2005. The 

relevant information pertaining to RTI Act 2005 is made available at the Company’s website. The queries 

are regularly replied through a Public Information Officer and Assistant Public Information Officer. All 

the information sought under the Act has been furnished within the stipulated time period. Whenever 



there is a likely delay in reply due to unavailability of proper information within the stipulated time limit, 

an interim reply is always sent to the applicants. Statutory Reports like Monthly Returns, Quarterly 

Returns and Annual Returns and other reports as required under this Act were complied with and 

forwarded to the Ministry from time to time. 

 

During the year ended on 31st March 2022, total 35 applications have been received, Out of 35 

applications, all were disposed off and no applications are pending. 

26. PROGRESSIVE USE OF HINDI 

 

The Orissa Minerals development Company Limited (M/S. OMDC) is situated in category (C ) area as per 

the Official Language Act. Company has taken positive steps to enhance awareness and usage of Hindi 

among employees. Company had observed “Hindi Pakhwada”by way of organizing competitions and 
distribution of prize on essay writing, Hindi poems recitation and Hindi Anubad in which the employees 

took active participation. M/S. OMDC is ensuring steps under the directives of the Official Language Act 

to use and propagate the use of Hindi. Bilingual Boards and advertisements are being issued.  

“Rajbhasha Shikshan Board” is put up at H.O. to appraise the employees with new words every day.  
Despatch registers and other works registers are maintained in Hindi. “Prabin, Pragya & Parangat” 
exams have been completed and above 80% of employees have passed the related exam. Central 

Government has already notified M/S. OMDC under sub-rule (4) of Rule 10 of the Official Language Act 

on 01.03.2017. The M/S. OMDC is already registered in Rajbhasa website and quarterly report are being 

sent regularly through online.  Company’s website is already updated in Hindi.  

27. EMPOWERMENT OF WOMEN 

 

The Company continues to accord due importance to gender equality. All necessary measures/ statutory 

provisions for safeguarding the interests of women employees in issues like payment of wages, hours of 

work, health, safety, welfare aspects and maternity benefits etc are being followed by the Company. 

 

In compliance with the directives of the Supreme Court, guidelines relating to sexual harassment of 

women workers at work places were issued by Govt. of India, Ministry of Human Resources and 

Development. Accordingly, a Grievance Cell for Women is functioning in the Company to redress 

grievances of women employees. No case of any harassment has been reported at any of the Mines of 

the Company or its Corporate Office. The directives have been widely circulated to bring awareness 

amongst the employees, particularly women. M/S. OMDC does not differentiate in terms of gender, and 

is an equal opportunity employer. 

 

Total women employees on roll of the Company as on 31.03.2022 is 12 nos which constitute about 

4.78% of its total workforce of 251 employees. As a part of CSR also, M/S. OMDC strives to empower 

women, details of which is listed at CSR activity separately. 

 

28. HUMAN RESOURCE &WELFARE OFWEAKER SECTIONS OFSOCIETY 

 

The total number of employees of M/S OMDC as on 31.03.2022 is 251 about 55.77% of the total 

strength( 140 of 251) belongs to SCs/STs/OBCs out of which,29(11.55%) belong to SC, 50(19.92%) to ST 

and 61(24.30%)OBC. 

Strength of SCs, STs and OBCs as on 31st March 2022 

1. Total No. of Employees     -251 nos (Exe.-70 & Non-Exe.- 181) 

2. Scheduled Caste among them    -29 nos (Exe.-7 & Non-Exe.- 22) 

3. Scheduled Tribes among them                    -50 nos (Exe.-00 & Non-Exe.-50) 



4. OBC                               -61 nos (Exe.-18 & Non-Exe.- 43)  

5. Total of SC,ST and OBC                                    - 140 nos 

The Company is also taking keen interest in development of the weaker sections of society living in the 

periphery of the mines situated in remote areas by providing drinking water facilities, road 

maintenance, periodical medical checkups and treatment to people living in these villages. 

 

29. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

 

Industrial relations in your Company and at Mines continued to be cordial during the year 2021-22.  

 

30. VIGILANCE 

  

Vigilance activities/events for the year 2021-22: 

Vigilance has been focusing on preventive and proactive Vigilance activities to facilitate a conductive 

environment enabling people to work with integrity, impartiality and efficiency, in a fair and transparent 

manner, upholding highest ethical to reputation and create value for the organization. 

 

An effort has been made to reduce the pendency of long pending Disciplinary Cases and complaints. 

Time to time Management suggested/advices to provide the documents/files as asked by Vigilance in 

time bound manner for further submission of report to CVC/MoS in stipulated time frame. Regularly 

review meetings conducted with the Management on Vigilance issues for immediate disposal. 

 

Vigilance Awareness Week was observed every year in line with directives of the Commission. 

System improvement has been achieved/improved in the following areas:-  

1. Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) version 1.0 for dispatch of undisposed stock of minerals has 

been prepared and implemented. 

2. Digitization of records: Central Data Repository System for digitally storing the data has been 

inaugurated on 03/01/2022 and records are being uploaded on the system. 

3. File Tracking System: E-Office has been implemented at OMDC head office and OMDC mines in 

phased manner. 

31. GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL MECHANISM (GRM) 

 

Grievance Redressal Mechanism is put in place in M/S. OMDC at Unit Level and at Corporate Level.  

Nodal Officer has been notified for this purpose.  The name & designation of the officer have been 

posted in the Company’s website. 

 

Status of Public/Employees’ Grievances from 01.04.2021 to 31.03.2022 

Sl. 

No. 

Types of 

Grievances 

Grievances 

outstanding as 

on 01.04.2021 

No.of 

Grievances 

received during 

the period 

01.04.2021 to 

31.03.2022 

No.of Cases 

disposed of 

during the 

period 

01.04.2021 to 

31.03.2022 

No.of Cases 

pending as 

on 

31.03.2022 

1 Public 

Grievances 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 



2 Employee 

Grievances 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

32. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES ACT, 1995 

 

M/S. OMDC being a mining organization is governed by the provisions of the Mines Act, 1952 and Rules 

& Regulations made there under. M/S. OMDC has implemented the provisions of “Persons with 

Disabilities Act, 1995”. 1(one) employee with disability is employed in M/S. OMDC.  

 

33. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW/ LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 

 

The Company has taken measures to ensure legal compliances from all the departmental heads and the 

annual legal compliance report are placed before the Board. 

 

34. WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY 

 

The Company maintains its website where information about the Company is provided. 

 

35. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 

The company has a vigil mechanism for Director and Employees to report their concerns about unethical 

behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s Code of Conduct. The mechanism 

provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of Director and employees who avail of the 

mechanism. In exceptional cases, Director and employees have direct access to the Chairman of Audit 

Committee.  

 

Your Company has a Whistle Blower Policy in place and the same is also made available in the 

company’s website. 

 

36. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGSAND 

OUTGO 

 

The prescribed particulars of conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange 

Earnings and outgo required under Sec 134(3)(m) read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules,2014 is followed at M/S. OMDC. 

 

37. STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 

On the advice of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, New Delhi, your Company appointed the 

under mentioned firm of Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditor of your Company for the year 

2021-22 

 

 

SL 

NO 

 

      Name of the Auditor 

 

                      Address of the Auditor 

1 

 

M/s.OM Kejriwal & Co. 

 

Plot no. A-17/10, Surya Nagar, near S.P. Vigilance 

Office, Bhubaneswar,Odisha-751003 

 

The Statutory Auditor Report on the Accounts of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 

2022 forms part of the Directors Report. 

 



38.COMMENTS BY THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA (CAG) ON THEACCOUNTS 

OFTHE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022. 

 

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG) had conducted Supplementary Audit under Section 

143 (6) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 of the financial statements of The Orissa Minerals Development 

Company Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2022. The comments of Comptroller & Auditor 

General of India under Section 143 (6) (b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Accounts of the Company 

for the year 2021-22 forms part of this report. 

 

39. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

A Secretarial Audit was conducted during the year by the Secretarial Auditors M/s.Vidhya Baid& Co., 

Practicing Company Secretaries. The Secretarial Auditor's Report for the financial year ending 31st 

March, 2022forms part of the Board's Report. 

 

40.OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013. 

 

An awareness programme on the said act was conducted by Dr. Rina Routray, Woman Rights Activist, 

Environmentalist & social scientist for the benefit of employees of OMDC at Head Office, Bhubaneswar 

on 09.12.2021 in which all 12 women employees participated. 

 

41. MAJOR LEGAL CASES 

The company is contesting a good number of legal cases in the High court at Calcutta, as well as 

High Court at Cuttack, DRAT, Supreme Court etc. Few of the major cases are detailed as under: 

1. F.M.A - 941 of 2012 (F.M.A.T No. - 649 of 2012) & 

F.M.A - 939 of 2012 (F.M.A.T No. - 650 of 2012)  

- The cases pending before the High Court, Calcutta 

 

Both the appeals relates to The Orissa Minerals Development Co. Ltd. & Jai Balaji Industries Ltd. 

The dispute was raised by Jai Balaji Industries Limited concerning the Supply of Iron Ore (10-30 

mm) & Iron Ore (5-18 mm) respectively .The matter was referred for adjudication by Arbitrator. 

Arbitration award was passed in favour of Jai Balaji Industries Limited. As per the award, OMDC 

is required to pay the claim amount of Rs.5,03,79,834.11 including interest calculated up to 15th 

September,2010 &  further interest till realization of the same and  the claim amount of 

Rs.3,55,03,760.33 including interest calculated up to 15th September,2010 &  further interest till 

realization of the same respectively. OMDC preferred these two appeals against the arbitration 

awards before the Calcutta High Court & the matters are subjudice. The two separate 

applications filed by Jai Balaji Industries Limited before NCLT, Calcutta, are dropped in terms of 

the direction passed by NCLAT, New Delhi. Now the Jai Balaji Industries Limited is trying to 

execute the arbitration awards through the following cases i.e. Money Execution Case No.: 04 

of 2021 & Money Execution Case No.: 05 of 2021pending before the Commercial Court, 

Rajarhat (W.B.). 

 

2. Case No.:  CA 400/2013 - (Pending before the High Court, Calcutta) 

 

This Company Application related to 3 Mining Leases of BPMEL filed before the Calcutta High 

Court by TPG Equity Management Pvt. Ltd. (TPGEMPL) against the Official Liquidator, BPMEL 

and others. In the said application, TPGEMPL prayed before the Hon’ble court to allow the 

proposed scheme of revival of 3 Mining Leases in its favour staying the winding up / liquidation 



proceeding of BPMEL. It was further prayed not to jeopardise its right, title and interest over the 

property of BPMEL. In the said application OMDC has entered its appearance as an intervener 

and opposing the contention of TPGEMPL. 

 

An interim order in the application (CA No. 400 of 2013) is passed on 9th August 2019, wherein 

the Hon’ble High Court directed for formation of a High Power committee consisting of three 

members i.e. one from the Central Government, one from the Orissa State Government and 

one member from Orissa Mineral Development Company (OMDC) to take a decision by a 

reasoned order with regard to the renewal of the subject leases. The court also directed to 

hear the version of TPG Equity Management Private Limited while taking the decision.  

 

In compliance of the order, the Dept. of Heavy Industry vide its letter dated. 20.03.2020 

formed a High Power Committee consisting of the representatives of Govt. of India, Govt. of 

Odisha and OMDC to hear the issue raised by TPGEMPL. Meeting was held on 03.07.2020 

through Video Conference. OMDC has submitted its comments to DHI, Govt. of India. It is 

understood from the Dept. of Steel & Mines, Govt. of Odisha that Govt. of Odisha has 

preferred appeal to Supreme Court [SLP.(C) No. 007315-007316/2021]challenging the order of 

High Court, Calcutta. The report of the committee is yet to be filed by DHI before High Court 

Calcutta.  

The S.C. vide order dated 08.10.2021 upon hearing SLP.(C) No. 007315-007316/2021directed 

for issue notice staying the operation and effect of the impugned order until further order. The 

matter is pending for further hearing. OMDC is yet to receive notice for appearance. Next date 

of hearing is awaited. 

 

3. Money Execution - Case No. 04/21 (Arising Out Money Suit No. - 46/2019). 

- Pending Before, The Commercial Court, Alipore (W.B.)  

 

The dispute relates to delay in transfer of shares & payment of dividends to the LRs of a 

deceased share holder. The applicants approached the court claiming compensation for such 

delay, loss on profit, harassment etc. Vide order (Judgment) dated. 14.09.2021 the suit was 

decreed on contest against OMDC with cost. OMDC is also directed to pay Rs.4,58,16,186/- to 

the plaintiff with pendentlite & future interest. DHrs. have filed the present execution case for 

realization of their decreetal dues.  

 

The OMDC preferred an appeal being no. FAT- 58/2022 (FMAT- 690/2021) before the High 

Court, Calcutta on 15.11.2021 challenging the judgment and decree passed by the Ld. 

Commercial Court, Alipore on 14.09.2021 favoring the Plaintiffs.A petition (CAN-01/2021) is 

also filed before the High Court praying for stay of the execution proceeding as an interim relief 

pending disposal of the Appeal. Vide order dated 22.03.2022 the appeal is admitted. The 

execution of the decree is directed to be stayed subject to furnishing bank guarantee of a 

nationalized bank in favour of Ld. Registrar General of High Court for Rs.5.00 Crores. However, 

the OMDC due to financial crunch has not been able to furnish the bank guarantee. The appeal 

is pending for disposal. 

 

Accordingly, the trial court has observed that, there is no stay of the impugned decree and 

directed for  attachment of Bank accounts.  

 

4. VISA STEEL LTD. 

 

A long term agreement was entered into between OMDC & VISA Steel Ltd  for supply of BF 



grade iron ore CLO (10-30mm) Fe 64% (acceptable up to 62.5% Fe)  at the basic price of  Rs 512 

per  MT F.O.R Thakurani, Barajamda, Orissa excluding  Royalty, Sales Tax and per siding charges 

on actual basis for a period of 55 months commencing from the date of agreement (21st 

December,2004) with the provision that the basic price shall be reviewed & revised by OMDC 

from time to time as applicable to major PSU’s & long term customer. 
 

Dispute and difference arose between the parties following which VISA STEEL LTD invoked the 

arbitration clause. Subsequently, the dispute was referred to arbitration.   Both the parties 

mutually agreed to appoint Sri V N KHARE, Former chief justice, Supreme Court of India as the 

sole Arbitrator. Visa Steel ltd claimed an amount of Rs. 190.21 cores and OMDC submitted the 

counter claim Rs.1.35 cores and additional claim of Rs. 254 Crores with 10% interest. 

 

The arbitration proceeding commenced from 24.01.2008. The last date of sitting was on 

14.12.2019.  The matter is pending for further adjudication. 

 

MAJOR LEGAL CASES – BPMEL 

 

1. Certificate Case no.:  32/2018 

 

This case was filed by DDM, Joda in the Court of Collector and District Magistrate-cum- 

Certificate Officer, Keonjhar against BPME Ltd. U/Sec. 6 of OPDR Act, 1962 for realization of 

penalty amount of Rs.871,43,77,003/- towards violation of Environment Clearance as per sec. 

21(5) of MMDR,1957. 

 

The matter was heard & final order is passed on 22.06.2019 by the Certificate Court for 

realization of penalty amount. 

 

42. RISKS & MITIGATING STEPS 

 

The Company has identified various risks faced by the Company from different areas. As required under 

SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015, the Board has adopted a Risk Management policy whereby a proper 

framework is set up. 

 

43. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

Shri Atul Bhatt, Chairman of M/s. RINL was appointed as non-executive Chairman w.e.f.13.09.2021. 

Shri A.K Saxena, Director (Operations), RINL was appointed as the Non-Executive Director of OMDC w.e.f 

01.07.2021.  

Smt. T N Sarasu & Shri M. Saravanan and Shri Siddarth Sambhu were appointed as Independent 

Directors of the Company w.e.f. 01.11.2021 and 03.11.2021. 

 

44. WOMAN DIRECTOR 

 

In terms of the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015, a 

company shall have at least one Woman Director on the Board of the company. Presently Smt.Swapna 

Bhattacharya, Deputy Director General, Ministry of Steel, is on the Board of your Company as Woman 

Director. 

 

45. DETAILSOF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

Shri. L.N. Biswal was appointed as CFO and KMP of the company by the Board w.e.f 18.05.2021 and 



superannuated on 31.07.2022. Shri R K Behera was appointed as CFO of the Company on 30.08.2022. 

 

Smt. Urmi Chaudhary resigned as Company Secretary of the Company and relived from the services of 

the Company from 16.06.2022.  

 

46. REPORT ON MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS 

 

A Report on Management Discussions and Analysis as required in terms of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) 

Regulation, 2015 forms part of the report. 

 

47. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

A report on Corporate Governance regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance 

pursuant to Schedule V of the SEBI(LODR) Regulation, 2015 also forms part of this Directors' Report.  

 

Certificate attested by the CEO/CFO is also enclosed forming part of the Corporate Governance Report 

and Certificate on Compliance was obtained from a Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance 

of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (Listing 

Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 also forms part of this Annual Report. 

 

48. DEPOSIT 

 

During the year under review, the Company did not accept any deposits from the public within the 

ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 

2014. 

 

49. LISTING 

 

The Company's shares are listed at The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited CSE, National Stock Exchange 

Limited NSE and also traded in Bombay Stock Exchange Limited BSE under permitted category.  

 

50. DEPOSITORY SYSTEM 

 

The Company's shares are under compulsory demat mode. The Company has entered into agreement 

with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL). 

 

All the Shareholder except 118nos are holding shares in dematerialized form. Members having 

certificate in physical form have been requested to dematerialize their holdings for operational 

convenience. 

 

51. ANNUAL RETURN 

 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act 2013, a copy of Annual Return in Form No MGT-7 for the 

FY ended on 31st March, 2022, has been placed on the Website of the Company at 

http://www.birdgroup.in 

 

52.APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 

Being a Central Public Sector Enterprise, the appointment, tenure, performance evaluation, 

remuneration, etc., of Director are made/fixed by the Government of India. 
 

The remuneration of officers is decided as per Government guidelines. On Pay Revision and 

remunerations of other employees of the company, the same is decided as per Wage Settlement 

http://www.birdgroup.in/


Agreement entered with the Employees Union. The appointments/promotions etc. of the employees are 

made as per Recruitment and Promotion Policy approved by the Board. 

 

53. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 
 

There are no material changes and commitment, affecting the financial position of the company which 

has occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of the report. 

 

54. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
 

Statements in the report, describing the Company’s objectives, expectations and/or anticipations may 
be forward looking within the meaning of Applicable Laws, Rules and Regulations. Actual results may 

differ materially from those stated in the statement. Important facto that could influence the Company’s 
operations include global and domestic supply and demand conditions affecting selling prices of finished 

goods, availability of inputs and their prices, changes in the Government policies, regulations, tax laws, 

economic developments within the country and outside and other factors such as litigations and 

industrial relations. 

 

The Company assumes no responsibility in respect of the forward-looking statements, which may 

undergo changes in future on the basis of subsequent developments, information or events. 

 

55. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained 

by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies 

Act, 2013: 

 

(i) That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;  

 

(ii) That the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 

of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial period and of the profit or loss of 

the Company for that period; 

 

(iii) That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  

 

(iv) That the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

 

(v) The Directors, in the case of a listed company, had laid down internal financial controls to be 

followed by the company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating 

effectively.  

 

(vi) That the Directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws were in place and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.  

 

(vii) The Company’s Internal Auditor has conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance 

that the Company’s approved policies and procedures have been followed. 
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

1. SWOT ANALYSIS 

     STRENGTH WEAKNESS 

 OMDC is one of the oldest mining companies in India. 

 Has rich Reserve of Iron & Manganese Ore.  

 OMDC has paid entire penalty amount of Rs. 876.22 

Crore including interest for all three OMDC mines on 

03.10.2019. 

 Order for execution of supplementary lease deed for 

Belkundi, Bhadrasahi & Bagiaburu mining leases has 

been received from Govt. of Odisha on 03.02.2020, 

06.02.2020& 07.12.2021 respectively and lease 

validity is up to 15.08.2026, 30.09.2030 & 10.10.2041 

respectively. 

 Supplementary lease deed of Bagaiburu mines has 

been executed for the period from 11.10.2021 to 

10.10.2041 and Public Hearing conducted 

successfully.  

 Hon’ble Supreme Court order dtd. 11.08.20 and 

7.4.22 allowed the sale of undisposed stock of 

minerals of Bhadrasahi mines and Bagiaburu & 

Belkundi mines respectively. 

 All the mines of OMDC are inoperative 

since 2010 for want of statutory 

clearances & renewal of mining leases. 

 3 (three) mining leases namely (1) Dalki 

Manganese Mines, (2) KolhaRoida Iron & 

Manganese mines, (3) Thakurani Iron & 

Manganese Mines, are in the name of 

Bharat Process & Mechanical Engineers 

Limited (BPMEL) under the Ministry of 

Heavy Industry. The mining activities of 

BPMEL mines were carried out by OMDC 

under Power of Attorney. Still all the 

surface rent & dead rent being paid by 

OMDC in the hope of getting the abovein 

the name of OMDC. 

 

 

  



 

THE ORISSA MINERALS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 
104thAnnual Report 2021-22 

 

 

OPPORTUNITIES THREATS     

 

 The operation of Bagiaburu mines is likely to  

start shortly after obtaining EC & CTO. Co-

terminus Forest Clearance of Belkundi Iron 

&Mn Ore Mines is in advance stage. 

 The Indian Steel Policy  

 OMDC is running with acute financial crisis and 

salaries to the employees cannot disburse regularly. 

 Non vesting of three major mining leaseholds which 

are in the name of BPMEL constitutes threat.  

 Disposal of various Court Cases lying in various 

Courts/Revisional Authorities related to mining 

lease/financial claims. 

 Risk factors such as additional duty on export of 

iron ore by GoI, high inflation, rising energy prices, 

uncertain domestic and international environment, 

change in government policies could affect the 

Company’s performance adversely. 

 

2. PERFORMANCE 

There was no mining activity of OMDC during the year 2021-22. Owing to non-availability of 

statutory clearances all the mines have remained non-operational. 

The company achieved significant progress in the attempts towards bringing the mines into 

operation.  The company received extension of mining lease period for Bagiaburu, Belkundi and 

Bhadrasahi mines.  Further, the clearance of Hon’ble Supreme Court has been received for 

resumption of mining operations in these mines, subject to obtaining all necessary clearances 

required in accordance with law.  The company is in the process of obtaining the clearances. Also 

OMDC obtained permission from Hon’ble Supreme Court of India for Sale of undisposed stock of 

minerals from Bhadrasahi vide order dated 11.08.2020 and for  Belkundi & Bagiaburu mines vide 

order dated 07.04.2022.  

Despatch from Bhadrasahi mines started on 28.06.2021 and 1.23 lakh tonnes of Iron & Manganese 

Ore dispatched during FY22 
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3. OUTLOOK 

The mining operation of Bagiaburu mines is expected to resume by Nov/Dec’22 and for Belkundi by 

Mar/Apr’23. 

4. RISKS AND CONCERNS 

Risk is inherent in any business organization and that managing risk effectively is important for the 

present as well as the future of the company. The company has adopted the Enterprise Risk 

Management Policy. 

5. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

OMDC has put in place all the necessary internal controls which are adequate and effective. 

6. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE OF 

THE COMPANY 

The financial performance of the Company is placed here in below:-  

a. SALES FROM OPERATIONS AND PROFIT ARE SHOWN IN TABLE I 

The details of Sales from operation and Profit after tax for the financial year 2021-22 as compared to 

previous financial year 2020-21 is represented in Table I. 

TABLE I 

 (Rs in Lacs) 

 2021-22 2020-21 Change Change in % 

Sales  NIL NIL -- -- 

Other Income 8,947.04 1,075.78 7,871.26 >100% 

Total Expenses 10,318.92 7,020.11 3,298.81 31.96% 

Profit before tax (1,357.26) (5,241.03)   

Profit after  tax  (1,449.40) (3,965.44)   

 

It can be observed from the above table that Company Lossbefore tax wasRs. (1357.26) Lakhs as 

compared to Rs. (5241.03) Lakhs for previous year. Loss after tax was Rs. (1449.40) Lakhs as 

compared to Rs. (3965.44) Lakhs during previous year. 

b. APPROPRIATION 

During the year 2021-22, the Company did not transfer any amount to General Reserve out of Profit 

and Loss. 
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c. DIVIDEND 

The Board of Directors of the Company did not recommend dividend for the year ended 31st March, 

2022 due to loss incurred by the company during the financial year 2021-22.   

7. INDUSTRIAL RELATION AND HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

Employees on roll of the Company as on 31st March, 2022 had been 251 as compared to 279 as on 

31st  March, 2021. 

a. Strength of SC/ST/OBC as on 31st  March, 2022 

Strength of SCs, STs and OBCs as on 31st  March 2022 

Total No. of Employees 251 nos (Exe.70- & Non-Exe.- 181) 

Scheduled Caste among them 29 nos(Exe.-7 & Non-Exe.- 22) 

Scheduled Tribes among them 50 nos (Exe.-00 & Non-Exe.-50) 

OBC 61 nos(Exe.-18 & Non-Exe.- 43) 

Total of SC,ST and OBC 140 nos. 

 

In order to have continued cordial industrial relation, a system of Permanent Negotiation 

Mechanism (PNM) has been introduced to have meetings with Unions at fixed intervals, for creating 

the better coordination between the Management &Workers; for smooth functioning of the 

organization and expeditious decisions for the settlement of grievances. Training program is taken 

up to enhance the skill-sets of the employees in alignment with their respective roles as required. 

8. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGICAL   CONSERVATION, 

RENEWAL ENERGY DEVELOPMENTS, FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONSERVATION  

a. Environmental Protection and Conservation 

Your Company is taking measures to protect the environment and conserve the resources as per the 

recently developed Corporate Environment Policy of the Company. 

b. Energy Conservation    

The Company consumes purchased electricity. Adequate steps are taken by the Company to reduce 

the electricity consumption.  

c. Technology absorption 

The Company has not absorbed any new technology during the year. 

d. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:  
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There was no transaction in foreign exchange during the year. 

9. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The Company is actively involved in various CSR initiatives as per Companies Act& DPE guidelines. 

Company has taken up projects under CSR during the year. Detailed information is disclosed in the 

Directors' Report. 

10. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements made in the Director’s Report and Report on Management Discussion and Analysis 

describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectations, predictions etc may be 

“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicable laws, rules and regulations. Actual 

results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a 

difference to the Company’s operations include economic conditions affecting demand/ supply and 

price conditions in the domestic markets in which the Company operates, changes in the 

Government regulations, tax laws, litigation, industrial relations and other statutes and incidental 

factors. Readers are cautioned not to place undue conviction on the forward looking statements. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 

"Corporate Governance encompasses a set of systems and practices to ensure that the Company’s affairs 
are being managed in a manner which ensures accountability, transparency and fairness in all transactions 

in the widest sense.” 

 

1. A BRIEF STATEMENT ON COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY  
 

The essence of Corporate Governance lies in promoting and maintaining integrity, transparency and 

accountability in the management’s higher echelons. The demands of Corporate Governance require 
professionals to raise their competence and capability levels to meet the expectations in managing the 

enterprise and its resources effectively with the highest standards of ethics. It has thus become crucial to 

foster and sustain a culture that integrates all components of good governance by carefully balancing the 

complex inter-relationship among the Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Finance, Compliance teams, 

Auditors and the Senior Management. Above all, OMDC feels honored to be integral to India’s social 
development. Details of several such initiatives are available in the Report on Corporate Social 

Responsibility.  

Corporate Governance at OMDC is based on the following main principles: 

In essence we believe that good corporate governance consists of a system of structuring, operating and 

controlling a company such as to achieve the following: 

 

1. A culture based on a foundation of sound business ethics. 

2. Fulfilling the long term strategic goal of the owners while taking into account the expectations of all 

the key stakeholders, and in particular consider and care for the interests of employees, past, present 

and future work to maintain excellent relations with both customers and suppliers take account of 

the needs of the environment and the local community. 

3. Maintaining proper compliance with all the applicable legal and regulatory requirements under 

which the company is carrying out its activities.  

4. Ensuring timely flow of information to the Board and its Committees to enable them to discharge 

their functions effectively. 

5. Independent verification and safeguarding integrity of the Company’s financial reporting. 
6. A sound system of risk management and internal control. 

7. The annual secretarial audit reports are placed before the Board, is included in the Annual Report. 

8. Timely and balanced disclosure of all material information concerning the Company to all 

stakeholders. 

9. Transparency and accountability. 

10. Fair and equitable treatment of all its stakeholders including employees, customers, shareholders 

and investors. 

 

We believe that an organization must be structured in such a way that all the above requirements are 

catered for and can be seen to be operating effectively by all the interest groups concerned.  

 

ETHICS POLICIES 

 

At OMDC, we strive to conduct our business and strengthen our relationships in a manner that is 

dignified, distinctive and responsible. We adhere to ethical standards to ensure integrity, transparency, 
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independence and accountability in dealing with all stakeholders. Therefore, OMDC have adopted 

various codes and policies to carry out duties in an ethical manner. Some of these codes and policies are:  

 

 Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel 

 Code of Ethics and Business Conduct for the Employees of OMDC 

 Risk Management Policy 

 Integrity Pact to enhance transparency in business 

 Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism. 

 Conduct, Discipline and Appeal Rules for employees. 

 Policy on determination of materiality of events or information  

 Code of Practice and Procedure for fair Disclosure. 

 

Based on the aforesaid objectives and in compliance with the disclosure requirements of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 executed with the Stock Exchanges as well as the Guidelines on Corporate Governance 

for Public Sector Enterprises, issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), the detailed 

Corporate Governance Report of OMDC is as follows: 

 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

As on 31st March, 2022 the Board of OMDC comprises of 9 (nine) directors, headed by Ex-Officio Non-

Executive Chairman, Ex-Officio Non-Executive Managing Director, Ex-Officio Non-Executive Director , 

a Government Nominee Director, four Independent Director and one Non-Executive Nominee Director 

nominated by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LICI).The composition of Board of OMDC is in 

conformity with SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance. 

 

a. Composition and category of Board of Directors of OMDC  

 

Category wise Composition of the Board of Directors as on 31st March, 2022 is as follows: 

 

Shri Atul Bhatt, Non-Executive Chairman 

 

Shri Deb Kalyan Mohanty, Non-Executive Managing Director  

 

Shri A.K Saxena, Non-Executive Director (RINL) 

 

Smt. Swapna Bhattacharya, Government of India Nominee Director, Woman Director 

 

Shri D. P. Mohanty (Nominee Director of LICI) 

 

Shri Sohanlal Kadel, Independent Director 

 

Shri Sidharth Shambhu, Independent Director 

 

Smt. Sarasu T.N, Independent Director 

 

Shri M. Saravanan, Independent Director 
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Managing Director and Functional Director are appointed by Government of India for a period of five 

years from the date of his assumption of charge of the post or till the age of superannuation or until 

further orders whichever is earliest. The Directors are initially appointed by the Board as Additional 

Director in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and thereafter by the shareholders in the 

Annual General Meeting. At present, the company does not have any director as Executive or whole time 

director in its Board. 
 

Government Nominee Director representing Ministry of Steel, retires from the Board on ceasing to be 

official of Ministry of Steel, Government of India. Non- Executive Directors (Independent) are normally 

appointed for a tenure of three years. 

 

b. Board Meeting Procedures  

(i) The Board of Directors is the apex body constituted by shareholders for overseeing the Company’s 
overall functioning. The Board provides and evaluates the Company’s strategic direction, management 
policies and their effectiveness and ensures that shareholders’ long term interests are being served. The 
Board has constituted four Committees, namely Audit Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility 

Committee, and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee. The 

Board is authorized to constitute additional functional Committees, from time to time, depending on 

business needs. 

ii) The meetings are convened by giving appropriate advance notice after seeking approval of the 

Chairman of the Board/ Committee as the case may be. To address specific urgent needs, meetings are 

also being called at a shorter notice. In case of exigencies or urgency resolutions are also passed by way 

of circulation.  

(iii) Detailed agenda note containing the management reports and other explanatory statements are 

circulated in advance in the agenda format amongst the Directors for facilitating meaningful, informed 

and focused decisions at the meetings. Where any document or the agenda of the Board/Committee is of 

confidential nature, the same is tabled with the approval of Chairman. Sensitive subject matters are 

discussed at the meeting without written material being circulated. In special and exceptional 

circumstances, additional or supplemental item(s) on the agenda are permitted. 

(iv)Presentations are made to the Board/ Committee covering Finance, Operations, major Business 

Segments, Human Resources, Marketing and Legal whenever required. 

 

Information placed before the Board of Directors 

 

As per Regulation 17(7) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 Part A of Schedule-II, the Board of 

Directors has complete access to minimum information within the Company. The minimum information, 

inter alia, regularly supplied to the Board includes: 

A. Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates. 

B. Capital budgets and any updates. 

C. Quarterly results for the Company and its operating divisions or business segments. 

D. Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the board of directors. 

E. The information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the level of board of 

directors, including appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary. 

F. Show cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices, which are materially important. 

G. Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollution problems. 
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H. Any material default in financial obligations to and by the Company, or substantial non-payment for 

goods sold by the Company. 

I. Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial nature, including 

any judgment or order which, may have passed strictures on the conduct of the Company or taken an 

adverse view regarding another enterprise that may have negative implications on the Company. 

J. Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement. 

K. Transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity, or intellectual property. 

L. Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions. Any significant development in Human 

Resources/Industrial Relations front like signing of wage agreement, implementation of Voluntary 

Retirement Scheme etc. 

M. Sale of investments, subsidiaries, assets which are material in nature and not in normal course of 

business. 

N. Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by management to limit the risks 

of adverse exchange rate movement, if material. 

O. Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders service such as 

non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc. 

 

c. Compliance  

Company Secretary prepares agenda, notes on agenda, minutes of the meeting(s) etc, as applicable to the 

Company in accordance with Secretarial Standard (SS-1 & 2) 

 

d. Attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting, Last AGM, Number of Directorship and 

Membership/Chairmanship of Committee 

 

The details of the Directors with regard to their category, directorship in other companies, and 

membership/chairmanship in committees of the Board of other companies, Attendance at Board Meetings 

and Annual General Meetings during 2021-22 are as follows:  

 

i)  Ex-officio Non- Executive Chairman 

Name & 

Designation 

  

Financial Year 2021-22 

Attendance at 

As on  date  

 
Remarks 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

held 

during 

his/her 

tenure 

No. of 

Board 

Meeting

s 

Attende

d 

Attendanc

e 

in last 

AGM 

(29.09. 

2021) 

**No. of 

Directorship in 

other 

Companies and  

partnership in 

firms 

*No. of Committee 

position held in  

other Public 

Limited 

Companies 

    Directo

r  

Partner Chairman Membe

r 
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ii) Non-Executive Managing Director 

 

 

iii) Government of India Nominee Director 

1.Shri Atul 

Bhatt 

DIN: 

07639362 

(Non- 

Executive 

Chairman) 

 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

YES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appointe

d from 

13.09.202

1 &   

continued 

till date. 

Name 

&Designation 

 

Financial Year 2021-22 

Attendance at 

As on  date 

 

Remarks 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

held 

during 

his/her 

tenure 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

Attended 

Attendance 

in last 

AGM 

(29.09. 

2021) 

**No. of 

Directorship in 

other companies 

and  partnership in 

firms 

*No. of Committee 

position held in  

other Public 

Limited Companies  

    Director  Partner Chairm

an 

Member 

2.Shri D.K 

Mohanty,  

DIN: 

08520947 

(Non- 

Executive 

Managing 

Director) 

 

7 7 Yes 4 - 1 3 Appointed 

w.e.f  

01.11.2018 

         

Name & 

Designatio

n 

 

Financial Year 2021-22 

Attendance at 

As on  date 

 

Remarks 

No. of 

Board 

Meeting

s 

held 

during 

No. of 

Board 

Meeting

s 

Attende

d 

Attenda

nce 

in last 

AGM 

(29.09. 

2021) 

**No. of 

Directorship in 

other Companies 

and  partnership 

in firms 

*No. of Committee 

position held in  

other Public 

Limited Companies  
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his/her 

tenure 

    Director  Partner Chairma

n 

Member 

Smt. 

Swapna 

Bhattachary

a 

DIN:08828

304 

(Governme

nt of India 

Nominee 

Director) 

 

 

7 5 YES 3 0 0 0 Appointed 

w.e.f 

02.07.2020  

 

iv)  Non-Executive Independent Director 

 

Name & 

Designation 

 

Financial Year 2021-22 

Attendance at 

As on  date 

 

Remarks 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

held 

during 

his/her 

tenure 

No. of 

Board 

Meeting

s 

Attende

d 

Attendan

ce 

in last 

AGM 

(29.09. 

2021) 

**No. of 

Directorship in 

other Companies 

and partnership 

in firms 

*No. of 

Committee 

position held in  

other Public 

Limited 

Companies  

    Directo

r  

Partner Chairm

an 

Membe

r 

Shri. 

Sohanlal 

Kadel, 

DIN: 

01556858 

(Independent 

Director) 

 

7 6 Yes 1 0 2 0 Appointed 

w.e.f 

21.10.2019 

& continued 

till date 
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v) Non-Executive Nominee Director 

 

 

vi) Non-Executive Director 

 

Name & 

Designation 

 

Financial Year 2021-22 

Attendance at 

As on  date 

 

Remarks 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

held 

during 

his/her 

tenure 

No. of 

Board 

Meeting

s 

Attende

d 

Attendan

ce 

in last 

AGM 

(29.09. 

2021) 

**No. of 

Directorship in 

other Companies 

and  partnership 

in firms 

*No. of 

Committee 

position held in  

other Public 

Limited 

Companies  

    Directo

r  

Partner Chairm

an 

Membe

r 

Shri. D. P. 

Mohanty, 

DIN: 

07819143 

(Nominee 

Director of 

LICI) 

 

7 6 Yes 1 0 1 2 Appointed 

from 

15.05.2017 

& continued 

till date 

Name & 

Designation 

 

Financial Year 2021-22 

Attendance at 

As on  date 

 

Remarks 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

held 

during 

his/her 

tenure 

No. of 

Board 

Meeting

s 

Attende

d 

Attendan

ce 

in last 

AGM 

(29.09. 

2021) 

**No. of 

Directorship in 

other Companies 

and  partnership 

in firms 

*No. of 

Committee 

position held in  

other Public 

Limited 

Companies  

    Directo

r  

Partner Chairm

an 

Membe

r 

Shri. A.K 

Saxena, 

DIN: 

08588419 

(Non-

Executive 

Director) 

 

4 2 Yes 4 0 0 3 Appointed 

from 

01.07.2021 

& continued 

till date 
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vii)  Non-Executive Independent Director 

 

Name & 

Designation 

 

Financial Year 2021-22 

Attendance at 

As on date 

 

Remarks 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

held 

during 

his/her 

tenure 

No. of 

Board 

Meeting

s 

Attende

d 

Attendan

ce 

in last 

AGM 

(29.09. 

2021) 

**No. of 

Directorship in 

other Companies 

and partnership 

in firms 

*No. of 

Committee 

position held in  

other Public 

Limited 

Companies  

    Directo

r  

Partner Chairm

an 

Membe

r 

Shri. Sarasu 

T.N 

DIN: 

09593230 

(Independent 

Director) 

 

3 3 No 1 0 0 2 Appointed 

w.e.f 

01.11.2021 

& continued 

till date 

 

viii)  Non-Executive Independent Director 

 

Name & 

Designation 

 

Financial Year 2021-22 

Attendance at 

As on  date 

 

Remarks 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

held 

during 

his/her 

tenure 

No. of 

Board 

Meeting

s 

Attende

d 

Attendan

ce 

in last 

AGM 

(29.09. 

2021) 

**No. of 

Directorship in 

other Companies 

and partnership 

in firms 

*No. of 

Committee 

position held in  

other Public 

Limited 

Companies  

    Directo

r  

Partner Chairm

an 

Membe

r 

Shri. 

Sidharth 

Shambhu, 

DIN: 

01646617 

3 2 No 1 0 0 2 Appointed 

w.e.f 

03.11.2021 

& continued 

till date 
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NAME OF LISTED COMPANIES IN WHICH DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY HOLDING 

DIRECTORSHIP 

 

SL 

No. 

Directors holding 

directorship in other 

listed companies 

Name of listed companies  Date of 

Appointment 

1 Shri Atul Bhatt 1. Eastern Investments Limited 

2. The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited 

13.09.2021 

13.09.2021 

1 Shri A.K. Saxena 1. Eastern Investments Limited 

2. The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited 

01.07.2021 

01.07.2021 

2 Shri. D.K. Mohanty 1. Eastern Investments Limited 

2. The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited 

25.09.2019 

19.05.2020 

3 Smt. Swapna Bhattacharya 1. Eastern Investments Limited 

2. The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited 

02.07.2020 

02.07.2020 

 

 

* In accordance with Regulation 26(1)(b) of SEBI (LODR)Regulations,2015, Chairmanship/ Membership 

of only the Audit Committees and Stakeholders Relationship Committees of all Public limited companies 

whether Listed or not in which he/she is a Director have been considered. 

(Independent 

Director) 

 

ix)  Non-Executive Independent Director 

 

Name & 

Designation 

 

Financial Year 2021-22 

Attendance at 

As on  date 

 

Remarks 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

held 

during 

his/her 

tenure 

No. of 

Board 

Meeting

s 

Attende

d 

Attendan

ce 

in last 

AGM 

(29.09. 

2021) 

**No. of 

Directorship in 

other Companies 

and partnership 

in firms 

*No. of 

Committee 

position held in  

other Public 

Limited 

Companies  

    Directo

r  

Partner Chairm

an 

Membe

r 

Shri. M 

Saravanan 

DIN:  

(Independent 

Director) 

 

3 3 No 1 0  2 Appointed 

w.e.f 

01.11.2021 

& continued 

till date 
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** The other Directorships held by Directors as mentioned above, do not include Directorships of Private 

Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Section 8 Companies under Companies Act,2013. 

 

Notes:(i) Directors are not related to each other; 

(ii) The Directorships/Committee Memberships are based on the latest disclosure received from 

Directors; 

(iii) The Directors neither held membership of more than 10 Committees nor acted as Chairperson of 

more than 5 Committees as specified in Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations and Clause 3.3.2 of 

Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by Department of 

Public Enterprises across all the companies in which they were Directors. 

(iv)Matrix setting out the skills/ expertise/ competence of Board of Directors  

 

OMDC being a Government Company, all the Directors are appointed as per the nominations from the 

Government of India. The Company has a competent Board with background and knowledge of the 

Company’s Businesses. All the Directors have requisite skills, expertise, competence in the areas of 

leadership, risk management, strategic planning, analytical thinking, corporate governance, finance, cost 

control measures and general administration. The Board comprises Directors from diverse experience, 

qualifications, skills, expertise etc. which are aligned with the Company’s business, overall strategy, 
corporate ethics, values and culture etc. 

 

(v) Due to non- appointment of optimum number of Independent Directors in the Board of the company, 

the meeting of Independent Directors could not be conducted during the year. 

 

(vi)None of the directors including Independent director have resigned before the expiry of their term 

during the financial year. 

 

 

 

 

e. Meetings of Board & attendance during the year 

 

During the year 2021-2022, seven (7) Board Meetings were held, the details of which are given 

below: 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Board Meeting 

No. 

Board Meeting Date Board  Strength Number of Directors 

Present 

 

1 

 

63 12.04.2021 

 

6 5 

2 64 18.05.2021 6 4 

3 65 29.06.2021 5 5 

4 66 13.08.2021 5 5 

5 67 12.11.2021 9 9 

6 68 31.01.2022 9 6 

7 69 14.02.2022 9 7 
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3. COMMITTEES  

 

The Board committees focus on certain specific areas and make informed decisions with the authority 

delegated to them. Each committee of the Board functions according to its charter that defines its 

composition, scope, power and role in accordance with Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 and DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance. Presently, the Company is having 

following Board Committees: 

 

3.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

1. Terms of reference:  

The primary function of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight 

responsibilities by reviewing the Financial Reports; the Company's systems of internal controls regarding 

finance, accounting and legal compliance that Management and the Board have established; and the 

Company's auditing, accounting and financial reporting process generally.  

The Audit Committee reviews reports of the Internal Auditors, meets Statutory Auditors, discusses their 

findings, suggestions and other related matters and reviews major Accounting Policies followed by the 

Company. The Audit Committee reviews with management, the Quarterly and Annual Financial 

Statements before their submission to the Board.  

The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are circulated to the Board, discussed, and taken note of. 
 

a. Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson 

 

The Audit Committee of OMDC consists of the following Directors:- 
 

1. Shri D.P. Mohanty, Non-Executive Nominee Director  

2.         Shri D.K. Mohanty, Non- Executive Managing Director  

3.         Shri Sohanlal Kadel, Non-Executive Independent Director and Chairman  

4.         Shri A.K Saxena, Non- Executive Director 

5.         Shri M. Saravanan, Non-Executive Independent Director 

6.         Shri Sidharth Shambhu, Non-Executive Independent Director 

7.         Dr. Sarasu TN, Non-Executive Independent Director 

 

The Company Secretary shall act as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. 

 

b. Meetings of Audit Committee & attendance during the year 
 

During the year under review, 5(Five) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The details of 

attendance of the Members are indicated below: 

 

Sl. No. Meeting No. Meeting Date Strength of 

Audit Committee  

Number of 

Members Present 

1 ACM/01/2021 29.06.2021 4 3 

2 ACM/02/2021 13.08.2021 4 3 

3 ACM/03/2021 12.11.2021 4 4 

4 ACM/01/2022 31.01.2022 7 5 

5 ACM/02/2022 14.02.2022 7 3 
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c. Attendance of each Director at the Audit Committee Meetings 

 

Sl. No. Name of the Director No. of meetings held No. of meetings 

attended 

1 Shri K.C Das 5 NIL 

2 Shri A.K Saxena 5 3 

3 Shri D. P. Mohanty 5 4 

4 Shri D.K. Mohanty 5 3 

5 Shri Sohanlal Kadel 5 2 

6 Shri Sidharth Shambhu 2 1 

7 Shri M. Saravanan 2 2 

8 Smt T.N Sarasu 2 2 

 

Role & Power of Audit Committee as per SEBI (LODR) & DPE Guidelines: 
 

1. The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall be an Independent Director. 

2. All members of Audit Committee shall have knowledge of financial matters of Company, and at 

least one member shall have good knowledge of accounting and related financial management 

expertise. 

3. The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall be present at Annual General Meeting to answer 

shareholder queries; provided that in case the Chairman is unable to attend due to unavoidable 

reasons, he may nominate any member of the Audit Committee. 

4. The Audit Committee may invite such of the executives, as it considers appropriate (and 

particularly the head of the finance function) to be present at the meetings of the Committee. The 

Audit Committee may also meet without the presence of any executives of the company. The 

Finance Director, Head of Internal Audit and a representative of the Statutory Auditor may be 

specifically invited to be present as invitees for the meetings of the Audit Committee as may be 

decided by the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

5. The Company Secretary shall act as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. 

 

Role of Audit Committee: The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following: 
 

1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 

2. Recommending to the Board the fixation of audit fees. 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 

auditors. 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements  before submission to 

the Board for approval, with particular reference to: 

5. Matters  required  to  be  included  in  the  Directors ‟Responsibility Statement to be 

included in the Board’s report in terms of clause (2AA) of section 217 of the Companies 

Act,1956; 

6. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 

7. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 
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management; 

8. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 

9. Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements; 

10. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and 

11. Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

12. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to 

the Board for approval. 

13. Reviewing, with the management, performance of internal auditors and adequacy of the 

internal control systems. 

14. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 

internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 

reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal audit. 

15. Discussion with internal auditors and/or auditors any significant findings and follow up 

thereon. 

16. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal 

auditors/auditors/agencies into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a 

failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the 

Board. 

17. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and 

scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 

18. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, 

debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and 

creditors. 

19. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism. 

20. To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the C&AG audit. 

21. To review the follow up action taken on the recommendations of Committee on Public 

Undertakings (COPU) of the Parliament. 

22. Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor, internal 

auditor and the Board of Directors 

23. Review all related party transactions in the company. For this purpose, the Audit 

Committee may designate a member who shall be responsible for reviewing related party 

transactions. 

24. Review with the independent auditor the co-ordination of audit efforts to assure 

completeness of coverage, reduction of redundant efforts, and the effective use of all 

audit resources. 

25. Consider and review the following with the independent auditor and the management: 

-The adequacy of internal controls including computerized information system 

controls and security, and 

-Related findings and recommendations of the independent auditor and internal 

auditor, together with the management responses. 
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26. Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the 

independent auditor: 

-Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit 

recommendations 

-Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any 

restrictions on the scope of activities or access to required information, 

 

Powers of Audit Committee 

 

Commensurate with its role, the Audit Committee should be invested by the Board of Directors 

with sufficient powers, which should include the following: 

 

(i) To investigate any activity within its terms of reference. 

(ii) To seek information on and from any employee. 

(iii) To obtain outside legal or other professional advice, subject to the approval of the 

Board of Directors. 

(iv) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary. 

(v) To protect whistleblowers. 

 

a. Review of information by Audit Committee 

 

The Audit Committee shall review the following information: 

 

Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 

Statement of related party transactions submitted by management; 

(iii) Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory 

auditors; 

(iv) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; 

(v) The appointment and removal of the Chief Internal Auditor shall be placed before the 

Audit Committee; and 

(vi) Certification/declaration of financial statements by the Chief 

Executive/Chief Finance Officer. 

 

3.2 STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 

A Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is constituted to consider and resolve the grievances of the 

security holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance 

sheet, non-receipt of declared dividend, .etc. 
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a. Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson 

 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of OMDC consists of the following Directors: 

1. Shri D.K Mohanty, Chairman 

2. Shri. M. Saravanan, Member 

3. Shri A.K Saxena, Member 

 

b. Meetings of Stakeholders Relationship Committee & attendance during the year 

 

During the year under review, no meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee could be 

conducted. The Chairman of the Committee has attended the Annual General meeting for the year 2021. 

 

The Board of Directors will reconstitute the Stakeholder Relationship Committee at the ensuing Board 

Meeting.  

 

3.3 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

The Board of Directors will reconstitute the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at the ensuing 

Board Meeting.  

 

a. Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson 

 

The present composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is as under: 

 

1. Shri D.P. Mohanty, Non-Executive Nominee Director and Member 

2. Shri. D.K Mohanty, Whole Time Director and Member  

3. Dr. Sarasu TN, Non-official Independent Director and Member 

4. Shri Sohanlal Kadel, Non-official Independent Director and Chairman 

 

The scope, powers and terms of reference of the Nomination &Remuneration Committee are as per the 

directives issued by DPE , SEBI(LODR)Regulations,2015 , the Companies Act,2013 etc. 

 

During the year under review, no meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held.  

 

OMDC being a Government Company, the terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration of 

Functional Directors are determined by Government through its administrative Ministry, Ministry of 

Steel. Non- executive Part -time Official Directors(Independent) does not have any pecuniary relationship 

or transaction with the company except their sitting  fees/ re-imbursement in relation to meeting of the 

Board / committee attended by them. 

 

OMDC is a Government Company and as per the MCA circular, exemptions have been given to 

Government Companies from applicability of Section 178 (2), (3), (4) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Further to inform that due to absence of optimum combination of Executive & Independent Directors in 

the Board of the Company, the constitution of the Committees are not in accordance with SEBI (LODR) 
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Regulations. Though, the company is sending letter to Ministry of Steel, Government of India for 

appointment of Executive & Independent Director in the Board of the company. 

 

The non-executive Directors are paid sitting fees as approved by the Board within the ceiling fixed under 

the Companies Act, 2013 and as per guidelines issued by the Government of India. 

 

During the year under review, the Non-Executive Independent Directors/Nominee Director were paid 

sitting fees of Rs7,500/- per meeting for attending the meeting of the Board, any Committee meeting or 

otherwise incurred in the execution of their duties as Director.  

Government Director, Ex-Officio Non-Executive Directors are not paid sitting fees for attending the 

meeting of the Board or any Committee meeting thereof. 

During the year, the Non-Executive Independent Directors/ Nominee Director received sitting fees for 

attending the meetings of the Board/Committee etc. as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Remuneration Policy:  

OMDC, being a Central Public Sector Enterprise, the appointment, tenure, performance evaluation, 

remuneration, etc., of Directors are made/fixed by the Government of India. The remuneration of officers 

is decided as per Government guidelines on Pay Revision and remunerations of other employees of the 

company are decided as per Wage Settlement Agreement entered with their Union every ten years. The 

appointments/promotions etc. of the employees are made as per Recruitment and Promotion Policy 

approved by the Board. 

 

3.4 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE  

 

Corporate Social Responsibility is the Company's commitment to its stakeholders to conduct business in 

an economically, socially and environmentally sustainable manner, whereby organizations serve the 

interests of the society by taking responsibility for the impact of their activities. The Board of Directors of 

the Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and has also approved 

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company 

 

Composition, Name  of Members and Chairperson  of the CSR  Committee :  

Name of the  Independent 

Directors/ Nominee Director  

 

Sitting Fees 

(in Rs) 

 

D. P. MOHANTY    82500  

SOHANLAL KADEL            75000 

SIDHARTH SHAMBHU            15000 

M. SARAVANAN           37500 

SARASU T.N           37500    
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The CSR Committee of OMDC consists of the following Directors: 

1. Shri D.P. Mohanty, Non-Executive Nominee Director and Chairman  

2. Shri K. C. Das, Ex-officio Non-Executive Director and Member 

3. Shri. Sohanlal Kadel, Independent Director and Member 

4. Shri D.K. Mohanty, Chairman & Managing Director 

 

Due to absence of executive director and optimum number of Independent in the Board of OMDC, the 

committee could not be reconstituted. Further, as per Section 135 of the companies Act, 2013, during the 

immediately preceding financial year (i.e 2020-21) every company having net worth of rupees five 

hundred crore or more, or turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five 

crore or more during shall constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board 

consisting of three or more directors, out of which at least one director shall be an independent director.  

Further considering the status of financial statements as on 31st March 2022, and the absence of any profit 

for last 3 financial years, it has not proposed budget for F.Y 2021-22. The Board will reconstitute the 

CSR Committee in its next meeting. 

5. i) During the year 2021-2022 the following cases of transfer / transmission / issue of  duplicate shares 

were received and processed: 

 

 

Particulars Number of Cases Number  of Equity 

Shares  

 

Transfer of shares NIL NIL 

Transmission of shares NIL NIL 

Issue of duplicate share 

certificates 

NIL NIL 

 

(ii) Details of Dematerialization of Physical Shares and Rematerialisation of Shares during the period 

from 1st April, 2020 to 31st March, 2022. 

 

 DEMAT REMAT 

PARTICULARS NO.OF 

CASES 

 

NO OF  

EQUITY  

SHARES 

NO. OF  CASES NO OF  

EQUITY 

SHARES 

NSDL 2 10000 NIL     NIL 

CDSL NIL NIL NIL     NIL 

TOTAL 2 10000 NIL     NIL 
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4(iii) Name and designation of the Compliance Officer: Mrs. Urmi Chaudhury, Company Secretary 

 

 (iv) Details in respect of shareholders’ complaints in SEBI Complaint Redressal System (SCORES): 

 

 

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, the Company and the RTA have attended investor 

grievances expeditiously except for the cases constraint by disputes or legal impediment. 

 

(v)Pursuant to Regulation 62(1)(d) of SEBI(LODR) Regulations,2015 the Company’s e-mail for 

grievance redressal purpose is info.birdgroup@nic.in where complaints can be lodged by the investors.  

 

5. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 

i. The details of the location and time of Annual General Meetings (AGMs) of OMDC held during 

last three years are as under: 

 

 

 

 

Number of shareholders complaints received 

during the year -    

 

NIL 

Number of complaints redressed during the 

period -                  

 

NIL 

Number of pending complaints as on 

31.03.2022 

NIL 

 

Year Venue Date Time 

2018-19 “PURBASHREE AUDITORIUM” 

Eastern Zonal Cultural Centre, 

Bhartiyam Cultural Multiplex, 

IB-201, Sector III, 

Salt Lake City, 

Kolkata-700106 

 

25-09-2019 11.00 A.M. 

2019-20 “PURBASHREE AUDITORIUM” 

Eastern Zonal Cultural Centre, 

Bhartiyam Cultural Multiplex, 

IB-201, Sector III, 

Salt Lake City, 

Kolkata-700106 

 

16-12-2020 11.00 A.M. 

2020-21 Sail Office, Ground Floor,271, 

Bidyut Marg, Unit-IV, Sastri Nagar, 

Bhubaneswar-751001 

29-09-2021 10.00 A.M. 

mailto:info.birdgroup@nic.in
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ii. Details of Special Resolutions passed in last three Annual General Meetings :  NIL 

 

iii. Details of Extra Ordinary General Meeting held during the last three years: 

 

Meeting Details Date & Time of Meeting Venue 

Extra Ordinary General Meeting 12.07.2019, 11:00 A.M 

 

“PURBASHREE 
AUDITORIUM” 

Eastern Zonal Cultural Centre, 

Bhartiyam Cultural Multiplex, 

IB-201, Sector III, 

Salt Lake City, 

Kolkata-700106 

 

 

6.DISCLOSURES : 

 

a. There are no materially significant related party transactions which have potential conflict with the 

interest of the Company at large. The policy on related party transactions has been placed on the 

Company’s website. (http://birdgroup.co.in/wp-content/uploads/POLICY-ON-MATERIALITY-OF-

RELATED-PARTY-TRANSACTIONS.pdf) 

 

b. There was no case of non-compliance of provisions of Companies Act, 2013 or Rules & 

Regulations of Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any Statutory Authority on any matter related to Capital 

Markets, during the last three years except non-compliance of appointment of Woman Director on the 

Board from February,2015 to May,2015 for which SEBI had imposed a nominal fine. There is no 

optimum combination of Executive & Non-executive director and there is only one Independent Director 

in the Board of OMDC. Further on 20.08.2020 an order was issued by SEBI in the matter of delay in 

dissemination of three Price sensitive Information related with year 2012 and a fine of Rs. 2,00,000/- 

imposed by the SEBI which is duly paid. 

 

c. Non- executive Directors are not holding any shares or convertible instruments in the Company. 

 

d. No personnel of the Company have been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

 

e. The Independent Directors of the Company furnished a declaration at the time of his appointment 

and also annually that he meets the criteria of independence as provided under law. The Board reviews 

the same and is of the opinion, that the Independent Director fulfill the conditions specified in the Act and 

the Listing Regulations and are independent of the management. 

 

f. All the recommendations of the committees have been accepted during the year. 

 

g. The Company paid Rs. 6.27 Lakh to the Statutory Auditors for the statutory audit and other 

services provided by them during the year. 
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h. The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and the same is uploaded on its website 

(http://birdgroup.co.in/wp-content/uploads/Whistle-Blower-Policy0001.pdf). The Company has a 

competent and independent vigilance department, headed by Chief Vigilance Officer (CVO), its officer 

for monitoring any unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of 
conduct or ethics policy. All the personnel are having the access to the vigilance department for their 

complaints, grievances etc. 

 

i. SEBI notified the SEBI(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, Amendments 2018 & 19 

which came into effect from April, 2019.Pursuant thereto, the Company has formulated and adopted a 

new Code for Prevention of Insider Trading. 

The new code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and  Reporting Trading by 

Insiders” and the “ Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive 
Information” allows the formulation of a trading plan subject to certain conditions and requires pre- 

clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares. It also prohibits the purchase or sale of Company’s shares 
by the Directors, designated employees and connected persons, while in possession of unpublished price 

sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is 

closed. 

 

j. The Company publishes the quarterly unaudited/audited financial results in leading National 

English Newspaper as mentioned under Heading “ Means of Communication”  
The unaudited/audited financial results are also posted on Company’s website. The Company 

communicates official news, major events, performances, achievements, presentations etc. through 

electronic media, newspapers and also on website. 

 

k. It is always Company’s endeavor to present unqualified financial statements.  

 

l. The Company has complied with the requirement of Corporate Governance as per 

SEBI(LODR)Regulations,2015 and DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance except provisions related 

to composition of Board of Directors. OMDC is a Government Company and Directors are appointed by 

Government of India and appointments of executive & independent directors are pending. 

 

 

7. OTHER DISCLOSURES 

 

a. The Company has formulated and implemented Code of Conduct for all Board Members and 

Senior Management of the Company in compliance with Regulation 17(5) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015. The same has also been posted at the Company’s website at (http://birdgroup.co.in/wp-

content/uploads/coc-omdc.pdf). All Board Members and Senior Management personnel affirm 

compliance with the code on annual basis. A declaration to this effect for the relevant year duly signed by 

Managing Director of the Company is annexed with this report.  

 

b. The certification by CEO and CFO in compliance with Regulation 33(2)(a) of 

SEBI(LODR)Regulations,2015 to the Board is appended to this report. 
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c. The Company has also laid down the Enterprise Risk Management Policy and Procedures thereof 

for periodically informing Board Members about the risk assessment and minimizing procedures. 

(http://birdgroup.co.in/wp-content/uploads/OMDC-Risk-Management-policy.pdf) 

 

d. In preparation of the Financial Statements, the Company have been prepared in accordance with 

the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed 

under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

e. None of the Directors inter-se related to other Directors of the Company. 

 

f. The details of the Presidential Directives received by the Company and the compliance thereof 

have been provided in the Directors’ Report. 

 

g. There have been no public issues, right issues or other public offerings during the past five years. 

The Company has not issued any GDR’s/ADR’s/Warrants or any convertible instruments. 

 

h. The Board has periodically reviewed the Compliance Reports of all applicable laws to the 

Company and has ensured the compliance of all the applicable laws. 

 

i. Being a PSU, appointment/nomination of majority of the Directors are done by Government of 

India through Ministry of Steel. The Company has not adopted any mechanism for evaluating individual 

performance of Non-Executive Board Members.  

 

j. Other than the sitting fees paid (Rs. 7,500/ per day per Director), Part time Non-Executive 

Directors have no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company during the year under report.  

 

k. Items of expenditure debited in books of accounts, which are not for the purposes of the business : 

Nil  

 

l. Expenses incurred which are personal in nature and incurred for the Board of Directors and Top 

Management : Nil  

 

m. The Company has not granted any Options during the financial year 2020-21. 

 

n. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account: No Shares are 

kept under demat/unclaimed suspense account. 

 

o. The compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 

regarding  Board of Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Vigil Mechanism, Related Party Transactions, Obligations with 

respect to Independent Directors, Directors & Senior Management have been complied by OMDC 

Limited except composition of the Board as explained in the report. 

 

p. Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging activities: Not required as OMDC has no exposure to foreign 

exchange. 
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8. COMPLIANCE WITH NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS 

 

The Company has complied with and adopted the following non-mandatory requirements of 

SEBI(LODR) Regulations,2015 are appended below:- 

 

The Board: 

 

The Chairman is Ex-Officio Non-Executive Chairman. Chairman’s office is separate from that of the 
Managing Director & CEO and no reimbursement of his expenses is made by the Company. 

 

 Separate posts of Chairman and CEO: 

 

  The Chairman of the Board is a Non-executive Director and his position is separate from that of the 

Managing Director & CEO. 

 

Shareholders’ Rights: 
 

The Company's financial results are published in the newspapers and also posted on its own website. 

Hence, the Financial Results are not sent to the shareholders. However, the Company furnishes the 

financial results on receipt of request from the shareholders. 

 

Audit Qualification: 

 

The Statutory Auditors did not qualify the Company’s Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 

March 31, 2021. 

 

Reporting of Internal Auditor 

 

M/s. HLP & Associates, Chartered Accountants, are the Internal Auditors of the company and provide 

Internal Audit Report every quarter. 

 

9.  HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

 

The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited (OMDC) is a subsidiary of Eastern Investments 

Limited (EIL) and EIL is subsidiary of Rashtriya Ispat Nigam Limited (RINL). Thus OMDC became 

subsidiary of RINL. 

 

OMDC does not have any subsidiary company. 

 

10.  MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

 

 

i) News Releases, Presentation, etc.: Company communicates major achievements and important 

events taking place in the Company through Press, Electronic Media and also on its website 

(http://www.birdgroup.co.in/omdc/press-releases/).. 
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ii) Annual Report: Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Directors’ 
Report, Auditors’ Report and other important information is circulated to members and other entitled 
thereto. The Management‘s Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual report and is 

displayed on the Company’s website. 
 

iii) Chairman’s Communication: Printed copy of the Chairman Speech is distributed to all the 

shareholders at the Annual General Meetings. The same is also attached with the Annual Report of the 

Company. 

 

iv) Reminder to Investors: Reminders for unclaimed dividend are sent to the shareholders as per 

records every year. 

 

v) NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS): The NEAPS is a web based application 

designed by NSE for Corporate. The quarterly compliances are mandatorily filed electronically on 

NEAPS. 

 

vi) SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES): The investor complaints are processed in a 

centralized web based complaints redress system. The salient features of this system are: Centralized 

database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATR) by the concerned companies 

and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status. 

 

vii) Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance:  

 

As part of the green initiative process, the company has taken an initiative of sending documents like 

notice calling annual general meeting, Corporate Governance Report, Directors Report, audited Financial 

statements, auditor’s report, dividend intimations etc., by email. Physical copies are sent only to those 

shareholders whose email addresses are not registered with the company. Shareholders are requested to 

register their email id with Registrar and transfer agent / concerned depository to enable the company to 

send the documents in electronic form or inform the company in case they wish to receive the above 

documents in paper mode. 

 

11.  GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

 

i) AGM Date, Time and Venue: 

 

Date Time Venue 

29.09.2022 10.00 AM Through VC/OAVM at Sail Office, 

Ground Floor,271,Bidyut Marg, Unit-

IV, Sastri Nagar,Bhubaneswar-751001 

 

 

          

ii) Share Transfer System 

Entire share transfer activities under physical segment are being carried out by CB Management Services 

Pvt. Ltd. The share transfer system consists of activities like receipt of share transfers along with transfer 

deed/form from transferees, its verification, preparation of Memorandum of transfers, etc. Share transfers 
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/transmission are approved by sub-committee / authorised persons (Company Secretary). A summary of 

transfer/transmission of shares is placed at Stakeholders' Relationship Committee/ Board meeting. The 

Company obtains from a Company Secretary in Practice half-yearly certificate of compliance with the 

share transfer formalities as required under Regulation 40 (10) of the Listing Regulations and files a copy 

of the said certificate with Stock Exchanges. However, as per SEBI Gazette Notification dated 8 June, 

2018, now physical shares can be transferred. No shares in physical form have been transferred during 

2021-22 

 

iii) Financial Calendar for 2021-22 

 

Sl. No. Approval / Adoption 

of 

On or before 

1st quarter results (Unaudited) on or before 14.08.2021 

2nd quarter results  (Unaudited) on or before 14.11.2021 

3rd quarter results 

  

(Unaudited) on or before 14.02.2022 

4th quarter results  (Unaudited) on or before 30.05.2022  

Next Annual General Meeting  within  30th September, 2022  

 

iv) Date of Book Closure : 23rd September to 29th September (both days inclusive) 

v) During the year the securities of the Company was not suspended from trading. 

vi) No credit ratings required during the year 2021-22. 

vii) No presentation was made Institutional Investors or analyst.  

 

viii) Listing on Stock Exchanges    

 

OMDC shares are listed on - 

National Stock Exchange (Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, Block-G, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),             

Mumbai – 400051,Calcutta Stock Exchange (7, Lyons Range, Kolkata-700001)   and got trading 

permission under permitted category at Bombay Stock Exchange (1st Floor, PhirozeJee, Jeebhoy Towers, 

Bombay Samachar Marg, Mumbai – 400001.Listing fees for the year 2018-19 has been paid to the Stock 

Exchanges. 

 

ix) Stock Code    

    

Sl. No. Name of the Stock Exchange where Company’s 
Equity Shares are Listed 

Scrip Code / Company Code 

1 National Stock Exchange, Mumbai ORISSAMINE 

2  Calcutta Stock Exchange, Kolkata 25058 

3 Bombay Stock Exchange, Mumbai 590086 

 

x) Market price data:  The monthly high & low price of the shares of OMDC for the period from 

April, 2021 to March, 2022. 
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Note: Fully paid up equity shares of F.V. Rs. 1/- each against every 1 fully paid up equity shares of F.V. ` 

10/- were allotted to shareholders on 31.10.2012 under new ISIN INE725E01024 of the company. The 

existing equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each bearing distinctive nos.000001 to 600000 stand 

cancelled w.e.f 31st October, 2012. 

 

A) Market price data of the Company’s share at Bombay Stock Exchange Limited  (BSE):  
 

Year Month Highest 

(Rs.) 

Lowest 

(Rs.) 

2021 April 2776.80           2258.30 

2021 May                            2985.00 2305.00 

2021 June 3800.00                         2794.10 

2021 July          3449.00           2892.50  

2021 August         3299.95           2650.50  

2021 September 3331.00                        2696.55 

2021 October          3015.00  2513.00 

2021 November          2786.55  2270.80 

2021 December 2543.95 2211.00 

2022 January 3126.15 2297.35 

2022 February 2297.35 2280.00 

2022 March 2984.90 2384.00 

 

B) Market price  data of the Company’s share at National Stock Exchange (NSE) : 
 

Year Month Highest 

(Rs.) 

Lowest 

(Rs.) 

2021 April              2779.70               2203.95  

2021 May 2987.15 2332.05 

2021 June                                 3802.00 2790.00 

2021 July 3451.00 2890.00 

2021 August 3144.10 2651.00 

2021 September 3338.85 2700.00 

2021 October 3017.00 2503.25 

2021 November 2789.90 2227.65 

2021 December 2544.00 2200.00 

2022 January 3125.95 2291.25 

2022 February 3080.10 2282.45 

2022 March 2990.05 2384.00  
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xi) Liquidity 

The Company’s Equity Shares are among the most liquid and actively traded shares on the Indian Stock 
Exchanges. OMDC shares are one of the frequently traded shares, both in terms of the number of shares 

traded, as well as value. The highest trading activity is witnessed on the NSE and BSE. 

 xii)  Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA)  

 CB Management Services (P) Ltd 

P-22, Bondel Road, 

 Kolkata–700019 

 Ph: (033) 4011-6700 

 Fax: (033) 4011-6739 

 e-mail: rta@cbmsl.com 

 

xiii) Depositories with whom Company has entered into agreement 

Name  ISIN CODE 

Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) INE  725E01024 

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) INE  725E01024 

 

xiv) Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account: No Shares are kept 

under demat /unclaimed suspense account. 

 

xv) Corporate Identity Number 

 

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company, allotted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 

Government of India is L51430OR1918GOI034390.                         

 

xvi) Payment of Depository Fees 

 

Annual Custody/ Issuer fee for the year 2021-22 has been paid by the Company to NSDL and CDSL. 

 

 xvii)  No. of Shares held in dematerialized and physical mode as on 31st March, 2022 

 

Particulars Shares % to Share 

capital 

Number of 

Shareholders 

% of 

Shareholder 

Held in 

dematerialized 

form in NSDL 

5059058 84.32 9349 49.53 

Held in 

dematerialized 

form in CDSL 

  735982 12.27 9409 49.85 

Physical 204960 3.41 116 0.62 

TOTAL 6000000 100.00 18874 100.00 

 

 

mailto:rta@cbmsl.com
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 xviii) Top Ten Shareholders of the Company as on 31st March, 2022. 

 

Sl. 

No.  

Name of the Shareholder Number of Shares 

held 

% of 

Shareholding 

1. EASTERN INVESTMENTS 

LIMITED 

3000890 50.01 

2. LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION 

OF INDIA 556323 9.27 

3. 3A CAPITAL SERVICES LIMITED 120000 2.00 

4. INDIAN BANK 66000 1.10 

5. MISRILALL  JAIN 49500 0.83 

6. Aspi H Tangree 40530 0.68 

7. GURSIMRANBIR  SINGH 35000 0.58 

8. RAIOMOND KHODADAD IRANI 25300 0.42 

9. Zarin Aspi Tangree 25000 0.42 

10. TAMANNA MAHESHWARI 23670 0.39 

 TOTAL 4103128 

 

68.38 

 

 

xix)  Categories of Shareholders with Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2022 

 
Shareholders  Number of 

Shares 

Percentage (%) 

1. Government (Central and State) NIL NIL 

2. Government Companies (EIL) 3000890 50.01 

3. Public Financial Companies  623350 10.39 

4. Nationalized and other Banks 86000 1.43 

5. Mutual Funds NIL NIL 

6. Venture Capital NIL NIL 

7. Foreign holdings (Foreign 

institutional investor(s), Foreign 

companies(s) 

Foreign financial institution(s), Non- 

 

190030 

 

3.17 
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Total No. of shareholders -18559 

xx) Distribution of shareholding by size as on 31st March, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

resident Indian(s) or Overseas corporate 

bodies or Others 

8. Bodies corporate (not mentioned 

above) 

265727 4.43 

9. Directors or relatives of directors NIL NIL 

10. Other top fifty (50) shareholders 

(other than listed above) 

606485 

 

10.11 

 

11. Indian Public 1134479 18.90 

 

12. Others 

  a) Clearing Member 

  b) NRI 

  b) Custodian of Enemy Property for   

      India 

 

20602 

72437 

NIL 

 

0.34 

1.21 

NIL 

TOTAL 6000000 100.00 

Category Number of Shareholders Number of Shares 

 Total % of 

Shareholder 

Total 

 

% to Share 

Capital 

1-500 18316 97.04 665247 11.09 

2501-1000 276 1.46 217035 3.62 

1001-2000 155 0.82 228429 3.81 

2001-3000 41 0.22 112610 1.88 

3001 – 4000 11 0.06 39043 0.65 

4001- 5000 10 0.05 45887     0.76             

5001-10000 32 0.17 219188 3.65 

10001-50000 28 0.15 574304 9.57 

50001-100000 2 0.01 136739 2.28 

100001 And Above 3 0.02 3761518 62.69 

Total 18874 100.00 6000000 100.00 
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Geographical Analysis Report as on 31st March, 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

xxiii)  Transfer of unpaid/ unclaimed dividend amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund 

 

During the year under review, an amount of 99,755.48/- pertaining to unpaid dividend for the financial 

year 2011-12 were transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) of the Central 

Government. 

 

xxiv)   Address for correspondence with Depositories 

 

National Securities Depository Limited                      Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

Trade World, 4th & 5th Floor                                       Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 17th Floor, 

Kamala Mills Compound                                              Dalal Street 

Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel                                   Mumbai - 400 001 

Mumbai - 400 013 

 

Telephone No: 022-2499 4200                                         Telephone No: 022-2272 3333 

Facsimile Nos: 022-2497 2993/6351                                Facsimile Nos: 022-2272 3199/2072 

E-mail: info@nsdl.co.in                                                    E-mail: investors@cdslindia.com 

Website: www.nsdl.co.in                                                  Website: www.cdslindia.com 

State Number of  

Shareholders 

% of 

Shareholder 

 

Number of  

Shares 

% of Shares 

 

Ahmadabad 2382 12.83 250197 4.17 

Bangalore 366 1.97 25489 0.42 

Chennai 318 1.71 85292 1.42 

Hyderabad  303 1.63 22529 0.38 

Kolkata 1333 7.18 3425348 57.09 

Mumbai 5113 27.55 1614373 26.91 

New Delhi 563 3.04 36874 0.61 

Pune 384 2.07 59645 0.99 

Surat 491 2.65 28573 0.48 

Others 7306 39.37  451680 7.53  

TOTAL 18559 100.00 6000000 100.00 

http://www.cdslindia.com/


 

THE ORISSA MINERALS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED 

 

xxv) Pledge of shares: 

 

         No pledge has been created over the Equity Shares held by the promoters as on March 31, 2021. 

 

xxvi) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel  

 

No Directors or KMP’s holds any shares in the company. 
 

xxvii)     List of Mines & Mines Locations  

 

Sr. No. MINES NAME & ADDRESS 

a) Thakurani Iron & Manganese Mines 

P.O. Thakurani, Via – Barbil, District : Keonjhar, (Odisha), Pin : 758035 

b) Belkundi Bagiaburu Iron Mines 

P.O. Nalda, Via – Barbil, District : Keonjhar, (Odisha), Pin : 758035 

c) Bhadrasahi Iron and Manganese Mines 

P.O. Kolha, Roida. Via – Joda, District : Keonjhar, (Odisha),Pin : 750038 

d) OMDC Sponge Iron Plant 

P.O. Thakurani, Via Barbil, District : Keonjhar, (Odisha),Pin : 758035 

 

Other Offices at:   

 

New Delhi: Core-IV, II Floor, Scope Minar,                                                                        

Laxmi Nagar District Centre, New Delhi-110092 

Bhubaneswar: Plot.No-2132/5131/5161                                                                            

Jayadev Nagar, Nageswar Tangi, Bhubaneswar- 751002 

 

 xxviii)   Address for Correspondence: 

 

The shareholders may address their communications / suggestions / grievances / queries to  

CB Management Services (P) Ltd 

P – 22, Bondel Road, 

Kolkata–700019 

Phone: (033) 4011-6700  

Fax: (033) 2287-0263 

E mail: rta@cbmsl.com 

 

OR 

The Company Secretary 

The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited 

C/O, SAIL OFFICE, GROUND FLOOR, PLOT-271 BIDYUT MARG, UNIT-IV, SHASTRI NAGAR 

BHUBANESWAR Khordha OR 751001 

E-mail: info.birdgroup@nic.in,  

Website: www.birdgroup.gov.in 
 

mailto:rta@cbmsl.com
mailto:info.birdgroup@nic.in
http://www.birdgroup.gov.in/
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    xxix)  Nomination Facility: 
 

 Shareholders who hold shares in the physical form and wish to make/change a nomination in respect of 

their shares in the Company, as permitted under the Companies Act, 2013, may obtain from CB 

Management Services (P) Ltd, the prescribed Form. Members holding shares in electronic form may 

obtain Nomination forms from their respective Depository Participant (DP).  

 

xxx) Investor Safeguards 

 

In pursuit of the Company’s objective to mitigate/avoid risks while dealing with shares and related 

matters, the following are the Company’s recommendations to its Members: 
 

a) Open Demat Account and Dematerialize your Shares 
 

Members should convert their physical holdings into electronic holdings. Holding shares in electronic 

form helps Members to achieve immediate transfer of shares. No stamp duty is payable on transfer of 

shares held in electronic form and risks associated with physical certificates such as forged transfers, fake 

certificates and bad deliveries are avoided. 
 

b) Consolidate your Multiple Folios 

Members are requested to consolidate their shareholding held under multiple folios. This facilitates one-

stop tracking of all corporate benefits on the shares and would reduce time and efforts required to monitor 

multiple folios. 
 

c) Confidentiality of Security Details 

Folio Nos./DP ID/Client ID should not be disclosed to any unknown persons. Signed blank transfer 

deeds, delivery instruction slips should not be given to any unknown persons. 
 

d) Dealing with Registered Intermediaries 
 

Members should transact through a registered intermediary who is subject to the regulatory discipline of 

SEBI, as it will be responsible for its activities, and in case the intermediary does not act professionally, 

Members can take up the matter with SEBI. 

 

e) Obtain documents relating to purchase and sale of securities 

A valid Contract Note/Confirmation Memo should be obtained from the broker/sub-broker, within 24 

hours of execution of the trade. It should be ensured that the Contract Note/Confirmation Memo contains 

order no., trade no., trade time, quantity, price and brokerage. 

 

f) Update your Address 

To receive all communications and corporate actions promptly, please update your address with the 

Company or DP, as the case may be. 

g) Prevention of Frauds 

There is a possibility of fraudulent transactions relating to folios which lie dormant, where the Member is 

either deceased or has gone abroad. Hence, we urge you to exercise diligence and notify the Company of 

any change in address, stay abroad or demise of any Member, as and when required. 
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h) Monitor holdings regularly 

 

Do not leave your demat account dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained 

from the concerned DPs and holdings should be verified. 

 

i) PAN Requirement for Transfer of Shares in Physical Form 

 

SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) for securities market 

transactions and off market/private transactions involving transfer of shares of listed companies in 

physical form. It is, therefore, mandatory for any transferee(s) to furnish a copy of the PAN card for 

registration of such transfers. Members are, therefore, requested to make note of the same and submit 

their PAN card copy. 

 

j) Mode of Postage 

Share Certificates and high value dividend warrants/cheques/demand drafts should not be sent by 

ordinary post. It is recommended that Members should send such instruments by registered post or 

courier. 

 

13. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013. 

 

The Company had constituted an “Internal Complain Committee” as required under the provisions of 
Sexual harassment of women at work place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

During the year under review, no complaint of harassment at the workplace was received by the 

Committee. 

 

14. CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

 

As per Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Certificate was obtained from M/s. Vidhya Baid & Co. 

Practicing Company Secretaries that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company for the Financial 

Year ending on 31st March, 2021 have been debarred or disqualified. 

 

15. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 

 

Details given here in above relating to various activities and future plans may be ‘forward looking 
statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. The actual performance may differ 
from those expressed or implied. 

 



 

 

Annual Compliance with the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year 2021-2022 

 

Pursuant to the Schedule V (Part D) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirement) Regulation, 2015, I hereby confirm that the Company has received 

affirmations on compliance with the Code of Conduct for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2022 from all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel.  

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited  

 

 

Sd/- 

D.K. Mohanty 

Chief Executive Officer & Managing Director  

 

Place: Bhubaneswar  

Date: 30.08.2022 

 



CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO PART B OF SCHEDULE II OF REGULATION 17(8) of 

SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS,2015. 

We, Shri D.K. Mohanty , Chief Executive Officer(CEO) and  Managing Director(MD) and Shri L N 

Biswal, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of The Orissa Minerals Development Company Limited 

(OMDC) shall certify to the Board that: 

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of 

our knowledge and belief: 

(1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading; 

(2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance 

with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 

B. There were, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company  during 

the year 2021-2022 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative  of the Company’s code of conduct. 
 

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 

that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial 

reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or 

operation of such internal controls, if any, of which they are aware and the steps we have taken or propose 

to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 

D. We have indicated to the Company’s Auditors and the Audit committee: 
 

(1) significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

 

(2) significant changes if any, in accounting policies, during the year and that the same have been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

 

(3) As regards to the transaction of the company during the year 2021-2022 is concerned it is to declare  

that we are not aware of any instances of significant fraud and involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over 
financial reporting. 

 

 

 

Sd/-         Sd/- 

L N Biswal                                                                        D.K. MOHANTY 

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)                                                   Chief Executive Officer (CEO) &                 

                                                                                                    Managing Director (MD) 

Place: Bhubaneswar 

Date: 27.05.2022 

















 

 
The Members 

THE ORISSA MINERALS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED  

C/O Sail Office, Ground Floor, Plot-271 Bidyut Marg, Unit-IV,  
Shastri Nagar, Bhubaneswar, Khordha 751001 

 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by THE ORISSA MINERALS 

DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED  (hereinafter called the “Company”) for the year ended on 31st 
March, 2022 as per the Regulation 17 to 27, clause (b) to (i) of Sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and 

para C, D and E of Schedule V of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”) and as amended.  
 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 

ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we 
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the 

above-mentioned Listing Regulations except the following:- 
 

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is not properly constituted as the Company does 

not have prescribed number of Independent Directors in its Board and accordingly 
compliance pertaining to the constitution of various committees and the necessary 

functions and duties as required to be discharged by these committees and the Board with 
Independent Directors and provision with regard to performance evaluation of Independent 

Directors, review of performance of Board of Directors, separate meetings of Independent 
Directors, Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors etc are also not made 

during the year under review.  Few changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 

also took place during the period but intimation as required under SEBI Regulations has not 
been made, delays have been noticed in filing Form DIR 12 in certain cases , and in few 

cases filings are pending as on date. Form DIR 12 for appointment of Mr. Sidharth 
Shambhu and Mr. M. Saravanan (Form DIR 3 also) as Director of the Company are yet to 

be filed. Hence penalties under Regulation 17, 18, 19, 20 ,21 and 25 of SEBI LODR 

Regulations has been imposed on the Company.  
2. Delay in Reporting under Regulation 27(2) and 40(9) for the quarter ended 31st March 

2022 has been observed. Delay in submission of  Annual  Secretarial Compliance Report for 
the year ended 31st March, 2021 and 31st March, 2022 has been observed. Non 

compliance under Regulation 23(9) and under Regulation 46(2) has also been observed 
during the review period. Hence penalties under Regulation 23(9), 24A, 27(2), and 40(9) of 

SEBI LODR Regulations has been imposed on the Company.  

3. Compliance with few disclosures to be covered under Corporate Governance report like 
/chart /matrix setting out skill/experience of BOD with separate expertise for all Director, 

detailed disclosures with respect to remuneration, detailed procedure for postal ballot, 
special resolution passed, details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, 

strictures etc and few other details as are required under SEBI  LISTING regulations.  

 

 

 
 



We further state such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

 

 

Place: Kolkata                     For VIDHYA BAID & CO.  

Date:   6th September 2022                           Company Secretaries 

UDIN: F008882D000929890              

           

 

                                                                                                      VIDHYA BAID 

            (Proprietor)  

          FCS No. 8882 

          CP No. 8686 
 





























































Comments of CAG on FIN. STMT for F. Y. 2021-22 Management Reply on Comment 

1. Other Current Assets (Note – 12B): Rs. 2896.74 

Lakh 

The above includes Rs. 2715 Lakh deposited by OMDC 

with Govt. of Odisha towards compensation payable 

under Section 21(5) of Mines and Minerals 

Development Regulation Act., 1957 on extraction of 

minerals without / in excess of EC / FC in respect of 

Leases in the name of BPMEL, being operated by OMDC 

on Power of Attorney basis. The deposit of Rs. 2715.14 

Lkh made by OMDC had been appropriated by 

Government of Odisha (GoO) as part-payment. In view 

of uncertainty in getting refund / adjustment, OMDC 

should have made full provision against the amount so 

deposited with GoO.  

Non-provision of the same has resulted in 

overstatement of Other Assets and understatement of 

Loss for the year by Rs. 2715.14 Lakh. 

 

This issue was also commented by C & AG on the 

financial statement of OMDC for the years 2019-20 and 

2020-21.  

(AM-2) 

On direction of Hon’ble Calcutta High Court, Central 
Govt. had formed a High Power Committee of 3(three) 

members representing the interest of all three stake 

holders (GOI, GoO and OMDC) to take decision by a 

reasoned order with regard to renewal of BPMEL Lease. 

OMDC being a member of High Power Committee, has 

submitted its report to Dept. of Heavy Industries. But 

Final Decision on same yet to be come. Further in 

recent review meeting conducted by Govt. of Odisha in 

June, 2022, on mining issues, BPMEL mining lease 

matter was also discussed. Govt. of Odisha advised to 

take immediate action to operate Bagiaburu, Belkundi 

and Bhadrasai Mines which are in the name of OMDC. 

Considering the above developments, OMDC has shown 

said compensation amount as contingent liability in 

Financial Year 2021-22 as done in previous financial 

years. 

 

In view of above, the comment may please be dropped. 

2. Current Liabilities:- Provisions (Note 20B): Rs. 

5969.07 Lakh 

As on date, total Stamp Duty & Regd. Charges against 

mining lease of Bagiaburu Mines has been paid and 

Lease Deed signed. It is assured that necessary 

amortisation against said payment for Bagiaburu Mines 

will be completed in the Current Financial Year i.e. 

2022-23.  

 

Against extended mining leases of Belkundi and 

Bhadrasai Mines, the Demand Notice to pay registration 

charges and stamp duty and to sign Supplementary 

Lease Deed has not been issued by GoO. Forest 

Clearance is pre-requisite for proceeding further to sign 

supplementary Lease Deed. As on date OMDC culd not 

get Forest Clearance for Belkundi and Bhadrasai Mines. 

Further, prevailing IBM price on the date of issue of 

Demand Notice is a vital component to arrive at 

amount of Demand Notice. Obtaining Forest Clearance 

is beyond the control of OMDC in spite of all efforts and 

demand amount of stamp duty and registration charges 

is uncertain till notice is issued for same. Considering 

above factors, no provision for stamp duty and 

registration charges could be done and projected 

amount for both the mines had been shown under 

contingent liability.  OMDC Management once again 

assured to audit that once Forest Clearance with 

Demand Notice for payment of Stamp Duty and 

registration charges obtained against respective mines, 

necessary provision for same will be created in books of 

accounts. 

 

In view of above, the comment may please be dropped. 

 

 

Govt of Odisha has renewed the mining leases of 

OMDC namely Bagiaburu on December 2021 and 

Belkundi & Bhadrasai on February 2020 upto 10 Oct., 

2041, 15 Aug., 2026 and 30 Sept., 2030 respectively 

with a direction to execute supplementary lease deed 

within three months (which has been extended upto 5th 

Nov., 2021). For execution of supplementary lease 

deed, OMDC is liable to pay Stamp Duty (five per cent) 

and Registration Charges (two per cent), to be assessed 

as per the GoO Gazette Notification of January 2012. 

 

As per the Company’s assessment, Rs. 8558 Lakh was 
payable towards stamp duty and registration charge 

(Bagiaburu Rs. 610 lakh, Bhadrasai Rs. 3823 lakh and 

Belkundi Rs. 4125 lakh). OMDC provided liability of Rs. 

610 Lakh on account of Stamp Duty and Registration 

Charges for Bagiaburu Mines and created 

corresponding intangible assets without amortising the 

same. Non-provision for stamp duty and registration 

charges payable to GoO towards execution of 

supplementary lease of remaining two mining leases of 

OMDC has resulted in understatement of current 

liabilities by Rs. 7948 lakh and understatement of 

Intangible Assets (Net of amortization expenses) by Rs. 

3113 lakh. Further, considering the life of the 

respective Leases, Current year amortization expenses 

is understated by Rs. 413 lakh and retained earnings 

(loss) is understated by Rs. 5032 lakh. 

This issue was also commented by CA&G on the 

financial statements of OMDC for the years 2019-20 

and 2020-21. 

(AM-3) 

 




































































































































